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RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LINHTED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Diractors are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records, and the preparation and integrity of the consalidated
financial statements. The cansclidated financial statements have been prepared in accardance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{"IFRS") and the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 in 50 far as applicable to companies holding Glabal Business Licence. The Company’s independent
external auditors, Deloitte Mauritius, have audited the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are required to;

«  selectsuitable accounting poiicies and then apply them consistently;
*+  Mmake judgemants and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
«  comply with International Financial Reporting Standards; and

* prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis unless Tt is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
tontinue in business.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requiremants in preparing the financial statements.

The Directors are also responsibie for the systems of internal control. These are designed to provide reasonabie, but not absolute, assurance as
to the reliability of the cansolidated financial statements and to safeguard, verify and maintain aceountability of assets and to prevent and detect
material misstataments and losses. The systems are implemented and monitored by suitably trained personnel with an appropriate segregation
of authority and duties.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Oirectors to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures and
systams has occurred during the year under review,

The consclidated financial staterments have bieet prepared on the going concern basis, The Directors have zssessed the ability of the Company
to continue to operate on a going concern basis for the next 12 months after the sign off of these financial statements. On the basis of this review
and zn assessment of the current financial position, nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Company will not
remain a guing concern for the foreseeable future.

Some of the Group's subsidlaries operate in Zimbzbwe, whose focal currency is in hyperinflation. The 2ntities whase functional currency is ZWL
have prepared hyperinflated financials in focal currency eonverted at the official closing rate to the United States dollar,

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

Neil Hagshthorn Laura Elliah-Rouget
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
12 December 2022 12 December 2022



RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
COMPANY SECRETARY CERTIFICATE
Certificate from the Secretary under Section 166 {d} of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001

We certify, to the best of our knowledzge and belief, that we have filed with the Repistrar of Companies all such returns as are requirad of the
Internaticnal Limited, under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, in terms of Sectian 166{d}, during the financial year ended 30 June 2022,

s

far ICECAP(Mauritius) Limited

Company Secretary

Registerad office:

Block 1€, Uniciti Business Park
Cascavelle

Mauritiug

12 becernber 2622
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Independent auditor’s report to the Shareholder of 4

Rift Valley Holdings Limited

Report on the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of Rift Valley Holdings Limited (the “Company”} and its
subsidiaries {callectively referred as the “Group”) set out on pages 7 to 93, which comprise the consolidated and separate
statements of financial position as at 30 fune 2022, and the consolidated and separate statemenis of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity and consolidated and separate
statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated and separate the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and the Company as at 30 June 2022, and of their consolidated and separate financial performance
and consolidated and separate cash flaws for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs) and comply with the requircments of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 in so far as applicable to Global
Business Licence campanies. '

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditar’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated und Separate Fingncial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standard
Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants {including International Independence
Standards) (the “IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responzsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
We belisve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinian.

Other matter

The consolidated and separate financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 were audited by another auditor, who
on 21 December 2021 expressed an unmodified opinion thereon.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors and
Administration, Director’s responsibility for financial reporting and the Company Secretary Certificate, but does not include
the consalidated and separate financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not tover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, cur responsibility is to read the cther
information and, in daing so, consider whether the other information is materially incansistent with the conseclidated and
separate financial statemenits or our knowledge abtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based an the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors for the consolidated and separate financial statements

The directors are respansible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidsted and separate financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the
Mauritius Companies Act 2001 in so far as applicable to Global Business Licence companies and they are also responsible for
such internal control as the directors determineg is necessary to enable the preparation of consalidated and separate
financial statements that are frae from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent auditor’s report to the Sharehalder of 5
Rift Valley Holdings Limited [continued)

Responsibilities of directors for the consolidated and separate financial statements [continued)

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclasing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting uniess the directars either inlend to liguidate the Group and/or the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s and the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial stataments

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements as a
whole are free fram material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that incdudes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 15As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individualily or in the aggregate, they could reasenably be expected to influence the cconomic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the ¢onsolidated and separate financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit pracedures respansive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the pverride of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the arcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the ettectiveness of the Group's and the
Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabieness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether 2 material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conciude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our auditor’s repart to the related disclosures in the consolidated and
separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group and/or the Company te cease to continue as a going conceran.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentaticn,

- Obtain sufficient approprizte sudit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion an the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent auditor's report to the Shareholder of
Rift Valley Holdings Limited {continued)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Muauritius Companies Act 2001
In accordance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we report as follows:

. we have no relationship with, eor interest in, the Company and its subsidiaries other than in our capacity as auditor;
. we have obtained all information and explanations that we have required; and

. in cur opinion, praper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as appears from our examination of
those records.

Use of this report

This report is made salely ta the Company’s sharehelder, as a body, in accordance with Section 205 of the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's shareholder those
matters we are required to state to the sharehalder in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
shareholder 25 a body, for aur audit work, for this report, cr for the epinions we have formed.

D @L\'}\-/m . ‘{f&g’__:.«w-a-/.
Deloitte Vishal Agrawal, FCA
Chartered Accountants licensed by FRC

12 December 2022



RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE'YEAR ENDED B0 JUNE 2022~ =~ @ v oo mmmor o comemers e

COMPANY
2021 2022
uss'ono uss$'ooo
Continuing operations
- - Revenue
- - Cost of sales

- - Gross profit

307 {508} Dther gains/(losses) - net
{648) {1003} Administration expenses
- selling and distribution expenses
668 947 Other income

327 (564) Operating profit
(511) {511) Finance costs
326 666 Finance income
Monetary gain on AS 29 Adjustmant
- - Share of (lass)/profit of a joint venture accounted for using the
- - equity method
192 (409) profit/{loss} befare income tax
- - income tax credit/{expense}
142 {409} Profit/(loss) from continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Profit from discantinued operations {attributable to
aquity holders of the Company} [net of tax}

'
f

142 {409) PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income

Note

28
32

30
32
32
29

37

37

10.2

31

38

tems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Gain/{loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Share of other comprehensive income of joint venture
- - accounted for using the equity method
Incame tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
- - subsequently to profit or loss
- - Gain on fair value through OCI

lterns that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
- - Exchange differences on translating foreign operations
- - Manetary loss on 1AS 29 Adjustment

- - Other comprehensive income for the year

142 {409 TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/({LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

10.2

19

19

GROUP
2022 2021
Us3'D00 Us5'000
162 053 165 400
(130 654) (132 838)
31399 32562
48 450 2394
(34 952} {32 615)
{1.049) 11066)
4817 4118
48 665 5393
{13 439) {11 122)
5538 5012
8577 -
{705) 26
48 636 {691)
2195 {6 060)
50 831 (6 751
99 -
50 930 {6751}
10 054 (1818}
702 -
(973) -

13
9796 (1818)
{968) 3585
- {1 398)
{968) 2187
8828 369
59 758 (6 382)




RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 fUNE 2022 - ~— " -~ e

COMPANY
2021 2022
uss'o6o uss'ooo
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to:
142 {409} Cwners cf the Company
- - Nan-controlling interests

142 taos)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to;
142 (409) Owners of the Company
- Non-controlling interests

142 {409)

GROUP

2022 2021
Us$'000 Us$'000
49 893 {6 455)
1037 {296)
50930 {6 751}
58298 (6273}
1460 {309)
59 758 {6382)

The above staternents of profit or loss and other comprehensive income shauld be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT B0 JUNE 2022 = #+ mmmoe s oo o o+ oni o ominin o e
COMPANY
2021 2022
uss'ooo Us$'o00
ASSETS

Non-current assets
- - Biological assets
- - Property, plant and equipment
- - Right of use assets
- - Intangible assets
- - {nvestment property
- - Investment in a joint venture
- - Investments in financial assets
- - Contract grower receivables
- - Other non-currant receivables
5438 8439 Investments in subsidiaries
26 623 27 243 Amounts due from group companies

35 062 35 682 Total non-current assets

Current assets
- - Biological assets
- - Inventories
- - Contract grower receivables
1913 2430 Trade and other receivables
- - Current tax assets
300 a4 Cash and cash equivalents

2213 2514 Total current assets

- - Assets classified as held for sale

37 275 38196 Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
95 95 Share capital
78 192 78192 Share premium
- - Revaluation reserve
- - Other reserves
- . Foreign currency transtation reserve ("FCTR")
94 958 97 462 Sharehalder loans
{156 2%92) (156 701) Acturnulated losses

16 953 19 048 Equity attributable to owners of the Company

- - Non-conirolling interests

16953 19 048 Total equity

Note

8.1

12
10.2
11
15
16
10.1
361

14
15
16
31
17

38

i8
13
19
12
18
26

20

GROUP
2022 2021
US$'000 Us3'000
38632 142
64 939 53 801
4734 2415
220 440
805 670
323 276
1704 1706
9020 2460
7 063 5 795
128 040 67 755
5523 635
75 862 78 408
48 708 39530
48 515 60 586
841 87
7883 3903
187 332 189 129
20 968 -
336 340 256 884
95 95
78 192 78 152
19015 9816
1556 1543
(4 144) (3181)
97 462 94958
(63 091) (112 239)
129 080 9 184
13 286 4738
142 366 73 922




RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LINIITED
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION [continued)

AT 30 JUNE 2022
COMPANY
2021 2022
Us5'000 uss'poo
Non-current liabilities
1287 1345 Borrowings
12 687 13123 Shareholder loans
- - Lease liabilitias
4183 2476 Contract liabitities
- - Grants
- - Deferred tax liabilities
500 600 Amounts due to group companies
18725 17549 Total non-current liabilities

Current liabifities
1397 1599 Trade and other payables
- - Contract labHities

- - Lease liabilities
- - Borrowings
200 - Provisions
- - Current income tax liability
1587 1599 Total current fiabilities
- - Liabilities directly assoclated with assets as held far sale
20322 15148 Total lfabillties
37215 38 1:9“5' Total equity and liabllities

The notes on pages 15 to 91 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The abeve statements of financial position shauld be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note

25.4
26
24.2
24.1
22
23
36.2

21
241
2432

25

27
34.1

38

GROUP
2022 2021
Us5$'000 Uss'000
5802 6038
13 303 12 794
3931 1408
2476 4297
- 59095
9038 6316
24 550 39946
25696 17617
- 23
980 a74
113 815 117 705
2993 5196
124 1501
143 608 143 016
15 816 -
193 574 182 962
136 340 256 384

2021 comparatives have been rearranged to reflect fair presentation and be consistent with 2022 presentation and gisclosuras.

t
i Q L “T“’L"m
Neil Ragzlthorn

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
12 December 2022

ia

taura Elliah-Rougat
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
12 December 2022
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RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022~ "

Balance at 1 July 2020

Profit for the year
Qther camprehensive income for the year, nat of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Transactions with owners

Sharehalder loans

Total transactions with owners recognised directly
in equity

Balarice at 30 June 2621

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive [oss for the year

Transactions with owners
Shareholder loans

Total transactions with owners recognised directly
in equity

Balance at 30 June 2022

- Share Share Shareholder Accumulated
capital premium loans lossas Total
us$'000 us$'o00 usé'coo US55'000 us5'000
S5 78192 96 288 {156 434) 18141
- - - 142 142
- - - 142 142
N - (1 330) - (1 330)
N - (1330) - (2330)
g5 78132 54 558 {156 252) 16 853
- - - 209) (409)
_ - - {409) (409}
- - 2504 - 2504
- - 2504 - 2 504
98 78192 87 462 [156 701} 19 048

12



RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 TUNE 2022 -

COMPANY
2021 2022
uss$'000 uss'oon
142 {4D8)
(307) 147
(81) -
511 511
(326) {656)
(61} (217)
{991) {517)
{383) 202
- (200}
{1 435} {732)
{1435) {732)
139 -
139 -

Profit/{loss) before income tax

Adjustments for:

Write back on BTL loans

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on right of use assat

Amortisation of intangible assets

Share of less/(profit} of a joint venture

Income fram amartisation of grants classified as investing cash flows
Dividend income classified as investing cash flows

Monetary gain on |AS adjustment

Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or ioss
Fair value {gain)/loss on investment property

Change in fair value of biological assets

Change in fair value of agriculture produce

Impairment Ioss cn progerty, plant and equipment

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of subsidiary

Unrealised foreign exchange gains

Other gains

Finance costs recognised in profit ar joss

Finance income recognised in profit or loss

fmpairment losses recegnised on:

Contract grower receivables 32.2
Trade and other receivables

Operating cash flows befare working capital changes
Decrease/(increase) in inventories

In¢rease in current hinlagical assets

Increase in contract grower receivables
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables
Decrease in provisions

Cash generated from/{used in) operations
Interest paid . 25
Income taxes paid 34.1

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 8
Cash and cash equivalents on acquired subsidiary

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 8
Purchase of intangible assets 9
Grants received 22
Net proceeds on dispasal of subsidiary 33.1

Dividends received

Net cash used in investing activities

i3

GROUP

2022 20231
us$'000 Uss'o00
48 636 {691)
(1 003} -
3847 3575
2176 1603
132 165
705 (286)
{680} {396}

- {85)
{8577) -
18 29
{135} 22
{259} 10
455 1173
314 843
(201) (16)
2470 203
(4 739) (4 648)
(45 071) (55)
13 439 11122
1589 {5 914)
(113} {72)
13 003 6842
2547 {8 677)
{4 R2R) [395)
(15 738) (10 320)
10803 (32 757)
8079 (6 580)
(2 203) (1210}
11603 {53 097)
(11 828) {8 819)
(2 990} {2 836)
{3 213) (64 752}
378 724

35 -

{2 957) (2 226}
(324) 122}
27 149

591 139

- 85

{z 250} {1151}




RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 20227 """ """~

CONPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
uss'ooo us%'000 uss'ono uss'ooo

Cash flows from financing activities

[1485) {1823) Deferred consideration payment 24.1 {1823} [1485)
- - Proceeds from short-term bank loans 25 158 926 184 063
- - Repayment of short-term bank loans 25 (153721} {117 643)
- - Repayment of lease liabilities 34.2 {2 687} {772)
2170 2504 Proceeds from shareholder loans 26 2504 2170
(3 500) - Repayment of shareholder loans 26 - (3 500)
3442 [620) Increase in other amounts due from group companies - -
463 461 Increase in non-current shareholder loans 509 463
1050 522 Net cash generated from financing activities 3708 63 206
{208} {210} Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {1755) {2 607}
498 300 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5012 12 442
10 {6) Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash eguivalents [792) (823}
300 84 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17 6 465 9012

The above statements of cashflows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022 77 7

2.1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Rift Valley Holdings Limited (the "Company"), is a limited liability company incorporated in Mauritius as a Global Business Licence 2 on 11
August 2005. The company changed regime and was issued a Global Business Licence on 30 June 2021. Its shares are not publiciy traded. Its
uitimate controlling party s Rift Valley Corporation,

Rift Valley Holdings Limited, through its subsidiaries and a joint venture, {together the "Group"} has operations in Zimbabwe and Tanzania
across various platferms: agriculture and trading; forestry; tobacco and energy.

The principal activities of the Group are as follows:

Agriculture and Trading
Makandi Estates (Private) Limited, incorporated and domiciled in Zimbabwe, produces quality macadamia nuts and avecados for export. It alsa

produces maize for the domestic market.

Chipinge Banana Company (Private) Limited, incorporated and domiciled in Zimbabwe, produces bananas for the local and export markets.
The Group jointly controls the company with another party.

Forestry

Border Timbers Limited is incorporated and domiciled in Zimbabwe. It primarily grows and mills hard and softwood timber and supplies poles
for agricultural and electricity concerns. it is also listed on the Zimbabwe Stock Exchange.

The Group lost control of Border Timbers Limited after the company was placed under judicial management on 29 January 2015, On 2 May
2016, Border Timbers Limited was placed under Final Judiclal Management and as a result was only consolidated as part of the Group up to 31

December 2014.
Subsequently Border Timbers Limited exited judicial management on 1 March 2022 and was cansofidated for the four months to lune 2022

Energy

Rift Valley Energy Limited (“RVE”} incorporated in Mauritius (and operating through various subsidiaries in Tanzania), facilitates, develops and
operates enargy projects. Combining a sustainable supply of electricity with the provision of clean energy to the surrounding communities and
the Tanzanian national grid, RVE actively contributes to the economit and social development in the regions of its operations.

At the beginning of the financial year, Rift Valley Holdings Limited Board decided to de-invest in the Energy business and is actively saeking 1o
dispose of the Tanzanian operations which have been classified as Held for Sale at 30 June 2022.

Tohacco
Northern Tobacco (Private) Limited incorporated and domiciled in Zimbabwe, is a tobacco contractor which provides finance, inputs and

agronomy advice to contracted farmers, then purchases and processes the tobacco from these contracted farmers.

Disposals during the year ended 30 June 2022
The Group disposed of it's subsidiary Northern farming (Private) Limited to a related party Cicada Plantations Zimbabwe Limited on 1 July 2021

and it's results are not consolidated for the year ended 30 June 2022.
Nerthern Farming (Private) Limited, incorporated and domiciled in Zimbabwe, is an agricultural produce merchant.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards ("IFRS"} as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board {"IASR"} and the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 in so far as applicable to companies holding

Globa! Business Licence.
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RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 20227

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain properites and financial instruments
that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explzined in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that
wouid be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability In an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly abservable or estimated using ancther valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
leasing transactions that are within the scope of §FRS 16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value

in IAS 2 or value in use in 1AS 36,

in addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are abservable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:
* Level T inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or lizbility, either directly
or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liabiity.
Basis of preparation of Financial Statements for the Significant Subsidiaries
All entities whose functional currency is primarily ZWL {previously "RTGS") have prepared financial statements in accordance to 1AS 29 Financial

reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies,

The historical cost information has been adjusted for changes in the general purchasing power of the Zimbabwe Dollar and appropriate
adjustments and reclassifications have been made.

IAS 29 requires that financial statements prepared in the currency of a hyperinfiationary ecanomy be stated in terms of a measuring unit
current at the end of the reporting period end, and that corresponding figures for previous periods be stated in the same terms to the tatest
financial statements date.

The adjustment has been calculated by means of conversion factars derived from the consumer price index (CPI) prepared by the Zimbabwe
Central Statistical Office. The restated statements of financial position numbers were converted to USD using the closing rate.
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RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR'TREYEAR ENDED30JUNE2022 7 7777

3

31

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS {IFRS)

In the current year, the Group and the Company have adopted all of the new and revised standards and interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board {the “IASB”} and the International Financial Reporting Interpretaticns Committee [“IFRIC”) of the IASB
that are refevant to the Group's and Company's operations and effective for accounting periods beginning on 1 July 2021.

3.1.1 New standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective but with no material effect on the financial statements

The following relevant revised standards have been applied in the financial statements. Their application has not had any significant impact on
the armounts reporied for current and prior periads but may afiect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

145 39 Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement - Amendments regarding replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform
IFR$ 7 Financial Instruments - Disclosures - Amendments regarging replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform

IFRS9  Financial Instruments - Amendments regarding replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform

IFRS 16 Leases - Amendments regarding issues in the context of the IBOR reform

IFRS 16 Leases - Amendments to extend the exemnption from assessing whether COVID-19 related rent concession is a lease modification
Relevant new and revised Standards in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the fallowing relevant new and revised standards were inissue but effective on
annual periods beginning on or after the respective dates as indicated:

IAS 1 Prasentation of Financial Staternents - Amendments Tegarding the classification of Habilities (effective 1 January 2024)

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the disclosure of accounting policies (effective 1 January 2023)

1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Staternonts - Amendiments regarding the classification of debt with cavenants (effective 1 January 2024])

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - Amendments regarding the definition of accounting estimates
(effective January 1, 2023)

IAS 12 Income Taxes - Amendments regarding deferred tax on leases and decommissioning obligations (effective 1 January 2023}

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Amendments prohibiting a company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment
amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use (effective 1 January 2022)

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Amendments regarding the costs to include when assessing whether a contract
is onerous (effective 1 January 2022}

IFRS 9 Financial instruments - Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements to {FRS Standards 2018-2020 (fees in the '10 per cent’ test for
derecognition of financial liabilities) {effective 1 January 2022)

IFRS 16 Leases - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions {effective 1 January 2024)

The directors anticipate that these Standards and Interpretations will be applied on their effective dates in future periods. The directors have
not yet had an opportunity to consider the potential impact of the application of these amendments,
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RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMERNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3¢ JUNE 2022

4.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities {including structured entities)
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achievad when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

- isexposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Company reassesses whether or nat it controls an invastee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.
When the Company has Jess than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers ali relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether ar not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

- the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

- potential voting rights held 2y the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need t¢ be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases whan the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and ather comprehensive income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Wheie necessary, adjustments are made Lo the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting pelicies. All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating ta transactions betwean members of
the Group are eliminated in full an consalidation,

Non-contraliing interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. Those interests of nen-controlling
shareholders that are present ownership interests entitling their holders to a proporticnate share of net assets upon liquidation may initially
be measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other non-centrolling interests are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-
controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controliing
interests. Total comprehensive income of the subsidlaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-cantrolling interasts having a deficit

balance.

{a} Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities} over which the Group has control. The Group contrals an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are decansolidsted from
the date that control ceases.

In the separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost. The carrying amount is reduced to recognise any
impalrment in the value of the individual investments.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account faor business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or fiability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets, Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022~ ™

4

4.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Basis of consolidation {continued)
{a} Subsidiaries (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquirze,
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree {if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-cantrolling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree {if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously heid equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains of losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or
loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss, where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed af.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair valug at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
vaiue of the contingant consideration that is deemed to be 2n asset or liability is recognised in accordance with IFRS 9: "Financial instruments”
either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity s not re-measured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any nen-controlling interest in the acquires and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of the
consideration transfarred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions amongst Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated.

{b] Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with nen-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control as transactions with eguity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controtiing interasts, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recarded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlfing interests are also recarded
tn equity.

(¢] Disposal of subsidiaries

Whenr the Group ceases to have control in a subsidiary, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previcusly recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or lLiabilities.

This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(d} Common control transactions

A combination involving entities or businesses under commen control is a business combination in which alt of the combining entities or
businesses are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the business combination, and that control is not
transitory. Common control transactions are excluded from the scope of IFRS 3: "Business Combinations”. The Directors made a policy choice
to use predecessor accounting for common control transactions. No assets or liabilittes are restated to their fair values, the acqguirer
incorporates predecessor carrying values. Thase are the carrying values that are related to the acquired entity. They are generally the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities of the acquired entity from the consolidated financial statements of the highest entity that has common
control for which consolidated financial statements are prepared. These amounts include any goodwill recorded at the highest consolidation
level in respect of the acquired entity. If no consolidated financial statements are produced, the values used are those from the financial
statermnents Of the acquired entity.

The acquired entity’s results and statement of financial position are incorporated retrospectively from the date on which the business
combination between entities under common control occurred. Consequently, the financial statements reflect the results of the acguired
entity for the period before the iransaction occurred.
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RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED307JUNE 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation {continued)

(e} Investmant in associates and joint ventures
An assaciate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Jaint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists cnly when decisions about the
ralevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion therecf, is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that assaciate. or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investrment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabiiities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IFRS @ are applied to determine whether it is necessary 1o recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate or 3 joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 9 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount {higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment foss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairmant 10ss is recognised in accordance with IFRS § to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases,

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a jeint venture, or when
the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition in accordance with IFRS 9. The difference between the carrying arnount of the associate or joint venture at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retsined interest and any praceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate
or joint venture is included In the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or jeint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss {as a
reclassification adjustment} when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value upeon such changes in awnership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a joint venture but the Group cantinues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previeusly been recognised in other comprehensive incore relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified ta profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or fiabilities.
When a Group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the Group, profits and lasses resulting from the transactions with the
assoclate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in the assaciate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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4
4.1

4.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Basis af consolidation (continued}

(f) interests in joint operations

A joint operatian is a joint arrangement wherety the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and
obligaticns for the Fabilities, refating to the arrangement. loint cantrol is the contractually agreed sharing of cantrol of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

When a Group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation to its interest in a
joint operation:

* jts assets, ncluding its share of any assets held jointly;

*  its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

*  its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation; and

¢ its share of the expenses by the joint operation.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to its interest in 3 joint operation in accordance with the IFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. When a Group entity transacts with a joint operation in which a Group
entity is a joint operator {such as a sale or contribution of assets), the Group Is considered to be conducting the transaction with the other
parties to the joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the transactions are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of other parties' interests in the joint operation. When a Group entity transacts with a joint operation fn which
a Group entity is a joint oparator {such as a purchase of assets), the Group does not recagnise its share of the gains and losses until it resells
those assets to a third party.

{g) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets {and disposal groups] classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rether than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset {or disposal group)
is availzble for immediate sale in Its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of contral of a subsidiary, ail of the assets and lfabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
its former subsidiary after the sale. When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal of an investment in an assaciate or, a
portion of an investment in n associate, the investmant, or the portion of the investment in the associate, that wilf be disposed of is classified
as held for sale when the criteria described zbove are met. The Group then ceases to apply the equity methed in relation to the portion that
is classified as held for sale. Any retained portion of an investment in an associate that has not been classified as held for sale continues to be
accounted for using the equity method.

Foreigh currencies

In preparing the financial staterents of the Group, transactions in currencies other than each subsidiary or entity's functional currency [forelgn

currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary

items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are

denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

- exchange differences on foreign currency borrawings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included
in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings;

- exchange differences on transactions entered into In order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

- exchange differences on maonetary items receivable from or payabte ta a foreign speration for which settiement is neither planned nor

likety to occur in the foreseeahle future {therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recoghised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.
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4

4.2

4.3

4.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into United States of America Dollars using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other camprehensive income
and accurnulated in equity {and attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation {i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operatian attributable to the owners of the Group are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differgnces are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not resuft in the
Group losing significant influence or jolnt control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.

|a}) Functional and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates {the “functional currency”}. The financial statements are presented in the United States of America
Dellar ("US$”) which is the Company's functional and presentation currency and the Group's presentation currency.

At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Nonmenetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired and liabilities agsumed through acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of cach reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Segment reporting

As neither the Group nor its ultimate parent has its debt or equity traded in a public market, the Group is not required to disclose information
on pperating segments per the requirements of IFRS 8 'Operating Segments’.

Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings comprise land for agricultural purposes, factories, offices and residential buildings for staff.

Property, plant and equipment are shown at fair value, based on periodic valuations by independent professional valuers, less subseguent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carsying amount. Any accumulated depraciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the net arnount is restated ta the revalued amount of the asset.

Bearer plants are included in property, plant and equipment. Before maturity, bearer plants are measured at their accumulated cost. After
maturity bearer plants are measured at deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment recognised in profit or
joss. The useful life of the bearer plants is determined in order to depreciate them and this is re-evaluated at each reporting date.

The Group's bearer plants at year end comprise macadamia and avocado trees. These each have expected useful fives of 30 years, The useful
lives are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support these useful lives.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as appropriate only when it is probable that
future ecanomic henefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenarnce are charged to the statements profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred. Cest in¢ludes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the iterns.
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4

4.4

4.5

4.6

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are credited to the revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against the revaluation reserve through other

comgarehensive income, alt other decreases are charged to the statement of comprehensive incame.

Capital work in progress comprises assets pending installation and not yet ready for Intended use. Assets are transferred from capital work in
progress to the relevant classes at the date they are available for the intended use.

tand and capital work ih progress are not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amcunts (less their residual values), over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Bullgings and improvements 4 - 30 years
Plant and machinery 5-33 years
Motor vehicles and tractors 5-10years
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 3-15vyeasrs
Avocado and macadamia trees 30vears

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount s written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses from disposal are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount, and are recognised in the
staternent of comprehensive income. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in revaluation reserves are transferred to retained

earnings.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the sharter period of the lease term and the useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects {0 exercise a purchase option, the related
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful fife of the underlying asset.

An itern of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon dispasal or when na future economic banefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Biological assets

Blological assets are living animals or plants [that are not bearer plants) that are managed by the Group. They comprise wheat, unharvested
macadamia nuts and avocados, and livestock. Macadamia and avocade trees are bearer plants and therefore presented and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment. However, the macadamia nuts and avocadas growing on the trees are accounted for as biological assets until
the point of harvest. Harvested macadamia nuts and avocados are transferred to inventory at fair value Jess costs to sell when harvested. At
initial recognition, blological assets are valued at cost. Thereafter, biclogical assets are measured at fair value less cost to sell. Costs to sell
include the incremental salling costs, including auctioneers’ fees, cammission paid to brokers and dealers and estimated costs of transport to
the market but excludes finance costs and income taxes.

Wheat is classified as immature unti! it is ready for harvest and then as agricultural produce at the point of harvest, Harvested wheat is

transferred to inventory at fair value less costs to seil.
Changes in fair value of livestock and unharvested wheat, macadarnia nuts and avocados are recognised in statements of profit or loss.

Agricultural produce

Agricultural produce represents binlogical assets, specifically macadamia nuts, avocados and maize crops awaiting sale, Agricultural produce
is measured at fair value at date of harvesting, less estimated point-of-sale casts incurred in bringing it to its present tocation and condition to
be soid.

The fair value of agriculture produce is not discounted as the produce is expected to sold within twelve {12] months after reporting date. The
effect of discounting is therefore not considered to be material.
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4.7

4.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Intangible assets

{a) Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangibie assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are recognised initially at their fair value at the
acquisition date {which is regarded a3 their cost). Subsequent ta initial recognition, intangible assets acguired in a business combinaticn are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impatrment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

{b} Computer software

Software is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the
future ecanomic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. Alt other expenditure is recognised in profit or toss as incurred,
Amaortisation is calculated over the cost [or other amount substituted for cost) of the asset, less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life, from the date the software is available for use, since this most closely
reflects the pattern of consumption of future economic bensfits embodied in the software. The estimated useful life is 3 years. Useful lives
and residual values are reviewed at each financiaf year-end and adjusted, if appropriate.

Derecognition of intangible assets

Anintangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising
frem derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposai proceads and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or toss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable armount of
the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any}. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset heiongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least annually and whenever there is an indication at the end ol a
reporting period that the asset may be impaired. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit} is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediatedy in profit of loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amcunt, in which case the impairment foss is treated as a revaluation decrease and to the extent that
the impairment loss is greater than the related revaluation surplus, the excess impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Where an impairment |pss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no Impairment loss been recagnised for the asset {or cash-generating unit] in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss to the extent that it eliminates the impairment loss which has been recognised for the asset in prior
years. Any increase in excess of this amount is treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial fiabllities are recognised in the statements of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, except for trade receivables thet do not have a significant financing
companent which are measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable o the acguisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as approgriate, on initial recagnition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or lass.
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4.8

4.8.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PCLICIES [continued)
Financial instruments {continued)
Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame establishad by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Ali recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification
of the financial assets.

Classificatian of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the follewing conditions are measured subsequently at amertised cost:
«  The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hald financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
+  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specifiad dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding

Debt instruments that meet the following canditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income {FYTOCI):
«  The financial asset is held within a business medel whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets
«  The contractual terms of the financiai asset give rise on specified dates ta ¢ash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amoumnt outstanding
By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair vaiue through profit or loss {FVTPL).

(i} Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is & method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are credit-impaired on initial
recognition), the affective interest rate is the rote that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all feas and points paid or
raceived that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit
losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a ¢redit-adjusted effective interest rate is
calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on
irtial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initie] amount and the
maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amartised cast of a financial asset
before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost and at
FVTOCL. For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculzted by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recegnised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subseguent reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest incorme is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

{ii) Debt instruments classified as at FVTOC)

The torporate bonds held by the Company are classified as 2t FVTOCL. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 2, The corporate
bonds zre initially measurad at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, changes in the carrying amount of these corporate bonds as a
result of foreign exchange gains and losses , impairment gains or losses , and interest income caiculated using the effective interest method
are recognised in profit or loss. The amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the same as the amounts that waould have been recognised
in profit or foss if these corporate bonds had been measured at amortised cost. All other changes in the carrying amount of these corporate
bonds are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of Investmants revaluation reserve. When these
corporate bonds are derecognised, the cumutative gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING POLICIES (continued)
A8 Financial instruments {continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets {continued)

(iii) Equity instrumants designated as at FYTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company may make an irrevocable election {on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate investments in
equity instruments as at FVTOC! Designaticn at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investrment is held for trading ar if it is contingent
consideration recognised by ana acquirer in 3 business combination.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subseguently, they are measured at fair
value with gains and lasses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other cormprehensive income and accumuiated in the investrments
revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, instead, it is transferred
to retained earnings.

Dividends on these investrments in equity instrumeants are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with IFRS ¢ unless the dividends clearly
represent a recavery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the ‘Finance income - Other’ line item in profit or loss.

[iv) Financial aszets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FYTOCI {see (i) to (iii) above) are measured at FVTPL.

Specifically:

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company designates an equity investment that is neither held for
trading nor a contingent consideratian arising from a business combination as at FVTOC! on initial recognition (see {iil} above)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCH eriteria {see {i} and (i) above} are classified as at FVTPL. In addition,
debt instruments that meet either the amartised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if
such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (so called ‘accounting mismatch’) that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them con different bases. The Company has not designated any
debt instruments as at FYTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value pains or losses recognised in profit
or loss to the extent they are not part of a designatec hedging relationship {see hedge accounting policy). The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss inciudes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other gains and losses” line item (note 30Q).
Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 2.

4.8.1.1 Foreign exchange gains and losses

Tha carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in 2 foreign currency is determined in that forelgn currency and transtated at the
spot rate at the end of each reporting period. Specifically:

For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognisedin
profit or loss in the "Other gains and losses’ line item.

For debt instruments meaasured at FVTOCI that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences on the amortised cost
of the debt instrument are recognised in profit or loss in For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, exchange differences an the amartised cost of the debt instrument are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘Other gains and losses’
line item {note 30). As the foreign currency element recognised in profit or loss is the same as if it was measured at amortised cost, the residual
fareign currency element hased on the translation of the carrying amount (at fair value) is recognised n other comprehensive incame in the
investments revaluation reserve

For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are recognised in profit or
loss in the ‘Other gains and losses’ line item as part of the fair value gain or loss.

For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income in the investments
revalustion reserve.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
4.8 Financial instruments (continued}

4.8.1 Financial assets {continued)

4.8.1.2 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost or
at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables and contract assets, as well as on financial guarantee contracts. The amount of expected credit
losses is vpdated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recegnises lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables. The expected
credit iosses an these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction
of conditions at the reparting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that wifl result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result fram default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

4.3.1.3 significant increase in credit risk

in assessing whethar the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognitien, the Campany compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at
the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and quzlitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and farward-locking information that is available withaut undue cost or effort. Forward-
looking information cansidered includes the future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well 2s cansideration of various
external sources of actual and forecast economic informaticn that relate to the Group's core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken intp account when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recegnition:

An actual or éxpected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (i available) ar internal credit rating;
o Significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial instrument, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debter, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset

has been less than its amortised cost

+  Existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations

s Anactual or expacted significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor
«  Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor

s An actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in
a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)]
4.8 Financial instruments (continued)

4.8.1 Financial assets {continued)

4.8.1.3 Significant increase In credit risk {continued)

Definition of default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used in measuring the amount of ECL end in the
determination of whether the koss allowance is based on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the prabability of default {(PD)
which affects both the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company considers the following as censtituting an event of default:

- The financial asset is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full

The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different types of assets. When assessing if the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Campany considers both qualitative and quantitative indicators, The information assessed depends
on the type of the asset and sources of information to assess default which are either developed internally or obtained from external spurces.

The Group monitors all financial assets, contracts that are subject to the impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If thare has been a significant increase in credit risk the Group will measure the ioss
allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-manth ECL. The Group’s accounting policy is to use the practical expedient that financial assets
with ‘low’ credit risk at the reporting date are deemad not to have had a significant increase in credit risk.

In assessing whether the credi risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, The Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reparting date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the risk of a
default oceurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial instrument was first
recognised. In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including Historical effort, based on the Group's Historical financial statements.

4.8.1.4 Write-off
Financial assets are written off when the Group has no reascnable expectations of recovering the financial asset. This is the case when the
Group determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.

4.8.1.5 Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statements of financial positicn

toss allowances far ECL, if any, are presented in the statements of financial positian for financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a
deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

4.8.1.6 Derecognition
The Group derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets expire, or when it transfers
the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and rewards of ownership ta another entity. Gains and losses on derecognition

are generally recognized in the statement of comprehensive, Hawever, gains and losses on derecognition of financial assets classified as FVI0C
remain within the accumulated other comprehensive (loss)/income.
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a4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUICIES [cantinued)
4.8 Financial instruments {continued}

4.8.2 Financial liabilities and equity

4.8.2.1 Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liakilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrurment.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments tssued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds recelved, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments

4.8.2.2 Measurement
All financial liabilities are measured subseqguently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when 2 transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or whan the continuing
invalvement approach applies, 2nd financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, are measured in accordance with the specific
accounting policies set out below,

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is (I} contingent consideration of an acquirer in 2 business combination,

{ii} beld for trading or (i} it is designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss to
the extent that they are not part of a designated hedging relationship {see Hedge accounting policy) The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial ability and is included in the ‘Cther gains and losses’ line item (note 10} in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost
Financial fiakilities that are not (i} contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, (i} held-for-trading, or (i) designated as
at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest methed is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of altocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments {including all fzes and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial llability, or {where appropriate] a shorter period, to the amertised cost of a financial liability.

4.8.2.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in statements of profit or loss.
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4.9

4.11.1

4.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
Cost is determined on the following basis:

a} Raw materials are valued at cost using the weighted average cost method;

b} Finished goods and work-in-progress are valued 3t cost using the weighted average cost method. Costincludes materials, direct tabour,
direct expenses

¢} related production overheads, and

d} Consumables are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out {“FIFO”) methad.
Obsalete and slow moving stocks are stated, where necessary, at their estimated net reafisable values.
Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers far goods and services provided in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected
in one year or {ess they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets, Trade receivables sre recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less allowance for impairment.

Contract grower receivables

Contract grower receivables are classified as trade and other receivables. These are amounts representing the minimum expected vaiue of
tobacco, wheat, maize or soya bean crop due from growers for loans advanced in the ordinary course of business. The loans advanced are for
financing the crops which the growers are obliged to deliver to the Group per the contractual terms. As the Group intends to take physical
delivery of the crops, contract grawer receivables are not classified as financial instrurments.

If collection is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Contract grower receivables are recognised initialty at fair value and subseguently measured at historical cost plus interast charges, less
provision for impairment,

Provision for impairment on contract growers

The Group reviews its assessment on cantract growers' profitability on a seasonal basis. The Group uses a provision matrix to look at the
estimated yield for each grower, expected prices to be realised by the grower based on agronomists' crop assessments, and market conditions.
If a grower is expected nat to realise enough sales proceeds to cover the debt to the Group, the amount expected not to be recovered (expected
credit loss) is provided for in full, after adjusting for the market value of the security pledged by the grower and held by the Group. The Group
only takes into account 60% of the vafue of immavable property and 40% of the value of movable property as this is the value that is expected
to be realised from a forced-sale situation. If a grower is expected to be in default for the current season, ali the advances made for the next
and future seasons as at the reporting date are also provided for.

The Group considers the forecasted weather patterns and the histerical perfarmance of the grower in coming up with the yields and quality
to be obtained by the grower.
Cash and cash equivalents

In the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at ¢all with banks, other short-tarm highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are convertible to known amaounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value, and Lbank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the statements
of financial position.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental <osts directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, fram the proceeds.
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4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Trade payabies are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amaortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Grants

Grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to income in equal annual amounts over the expected
useful life of the asset. A grant that becomes repayabie is accounted for as a revision to an accounting estimate and is derecognised.

Borrowings

Borrowing costs directly attributable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of thase assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or saie.

To the extent that variable rate borrowings are used to finance a qualifying asset and are hedged in an effactive cash flow hedge of interest
rate risk, the effective portion of the derivative is recognised in ather comprehensive income and reclassified to profit or loss when the
quafifying asset affects profit or lpss. To the extent that fixed rate borrowings are used to finance a qualifying asset and are hedged in an
effective fair value hedge of interest rate risk, the capitalised borrowing costs reflect the hedged interest rate.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on gualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit ar Joss in the period in which they are
incurred. evidence that it is probable that some or ail of the facility wilt be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

{&) Current income tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax’ as reported in the cansclidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of items of income or expanse that are taxable or deductible in other

years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

A provision is recognised for those ratters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is considered probable that there will be a future
cutflow of funds to a tax authority. The provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amount expected to become payable. The
assessment is based on the judgement of tax professionals within the Group supparted by previous experience in respect of such activities and
in certain cases based on specialist independent tax advice.

{b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying ameounts of assets and habilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the correspanding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for taxable tempaorary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint venturas, except
where the Group is able to control the reversat of the termporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the fureseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected ta reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation [continued)

(b} Deferred tax {continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will ke available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the fizbility is settled ar the asset realised, based on tax rates {and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporiing period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets refiects the tax conseguences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reperting period, to
recuvetl 01 setile the carrying amount of 1ts assets and Hiahilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax fabilities and deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
mode), the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, uniess the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment praperty is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through sale. The directors of the Group
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that none of the Group's investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to cansume substantizlly all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, the directors have determined that the 'sale' presumption set out in the amendments to 1AS 12 'Income Taxes' is not
rebutted, As a result, the Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the investment properties as the Group is
not subject to any income taxes on the fair value changes of the investment properties on disposal.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a [egailly enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

{c) Current and defarred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit ar loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive incame
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Employee banefits

{a) Defined contribution plan

The Group's employees are membars of defined contribution plans in Zimbabwe and Tanzania. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no iegal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The
contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

The Group's subsidiaries and employees in Zimbabwe also contribute te the MNational Social Security Authority Scheme. This is a social security
scheme which was promulgated under the National Social Security Act (Chapter 17:04) and Statutory Instrument 393 of 1993 of Zimbabwe.
The Group's obligations under the scheme are limited to specific contributions as legislated from time to time. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expenses in statements of profit or lass when they are due. There is similar legisiation for the Group's subsidiaries and
employees in Tanzania with the National Social Security Fund which operates in a similar manner,

{b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal retirerent date or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed
to either terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed, formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits {alling due more than 12 months after the
reporting date are discounted to their present vaiue.

{¢} Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense far bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Group’s shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where
there is a8 past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

(d}) Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Aliability s recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salzries, annua) leave and sick izave in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service. Liabilities recognised in
respact of shart-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
related service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term emgloyee henetits are measured at the present vaiue of the estimated future cash outflows
experted to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outilow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses., The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surraunding the ahligation.

When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a pravision
are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it (s virtually certain that reimbursement will be
recelved and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onercus contract is considered to exist
where the Group has a contract under which the unavotdable costs of meeting the cbligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits
expected 1o be received under it.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue fram the sale of agricultural produce, agricultural commadities, processing of tobacco and distributicon of
electricity.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for thase goods ar services. The Group has generally concluded
thatitis the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from sale of agricultural produce and agricultural commodities is recognised at the point in time when control of the assat is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the produce.

Revenue for the sale and distribution of efectricity (and associated services) is recognised over time as the various performance obligations are
dischargad. Thae transaction price allocated to these services is recognised as a contract liability at the time of the initial sales transaction and
is released on a straight-line basis over the period of service (i.e. the term of the electricity distribution licence).

Energy charges
This is electricity sold by the Group through a distribution license in Tanzania. The power is supplied to customers under various service
agreements. Revenue from energy is recognised at a point in time.

Connection fees
These are standard connectian charges where the Group installs service lines to provide power to their customers. Revenue from connection
of fees is recognised at a point in time.

Application fees
These are fees charged by the Group to process applications for connection to the Group's service lines. Revenue is recognised at installation,

The Group considers that there are no other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the
transaction price needs to be aflocated.

Revenue is measured at the amount of the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation taking into account the effects of
variable cansideration and the existence of significant financing component.
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SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}
Revenue recognition [continued)

IFRS 15 uses the terms ‘contract asset’ and ‘contract labitity” 1o describe what might more commonly be known as ‘accrued revenue’ and
‘deferred revenue’. The Group has adopted this terminalogy to describe such balances. The application of IFRS 15 has not had a significant
impact on the financial position and financiat performance of the Group with the exception of the disclosure of deferred revenue of

US5152 000 [note 38) at 30 fune 2022.

Other income

[a) Interest incorne

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost {(contract growers and loans and receivables) calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by referance to the principat cutstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable (note
25}, Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, 2 shorter period to the net carrying amount of the instrument,

{b) Dividend income
Dividends are received from financial assets measured at fair valua through profit or loss (FVPL). Dividends ara recognised as other income in
profit or loss when the right to receive payment is established.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales includes the purchase price of products sold and other ¢osts incurred in bringing the inventories to the location and condition
ready for sale. These costs may include costs of growing crops and rearing animals, purchasing, storing, rent, depreciation of praperty, plant
and equipment and salaries.

Investments in subsidiaries

The Group uses IAS 27 'Separate Financial Statements' to account for investments in Group companies in its financial statements, and elected
to account for investments in subsidiaries at cost.

Ilavestment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals andfor capital appreciation. Investment properties are initfally measured at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair values. All of the Group's property
interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

An Investment praperty is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or [oss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Leases

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-af-use asset and a
carresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases {defined as leases with
a lease term of 12 months or lass) and leases of low value {<USS$5 000) assets {such as tablets and personal computers, smalt items of office
furniture and telephones). For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-fine basis over the
term of the lease unless ancther systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets
are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by
using the rate implicit in the lease. if this rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee uses its incremental borrowing rata.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Leases [continued)
The Group as lessee {continued)

The incremental borrowing rate depends on the term, currency and start date of the lease and is determined based on a series of inputs
including: the risk-free rate based on government bond rates; a country-specific risk adjustment; a credit risk adjustment based on bond yields;
and an entity-specific adjustment when the risk profile of the entity that enters into the lease is different to that of the Group and the lease
does nnt henefit fram a guarantee from the Group.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprisa:
«  Fixed lease payments {including in-substance fixed payments}), less any lease incentives receivahle;
*  Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;
. The amount expected to be payabla by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
+  The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reascnably certain {o axercise the options; and
»  Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term refiects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial pasition. The lease liability is subsequently measured
by incraasing the carrying amount to reflect interest an the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying
amount o reflect the lease payments made,

The Group remeasures the lease liability {(and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

«  The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting ina change in the assessment of exercise
of a purchase option, in which case the lease liabkility is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate,

+  Thalease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expecied payment under a guaranteed residual value, in
which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the
lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

» A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding Jease liability, lease payments made at or before the
cammencement day, less any lease incentives received and any inittal direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumuiated
depraciation and impairment losses.

whenever the Group Incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore
the underlying asset to the condition requirad by the terms and conditions of the lease, a pravision is recognised and measured under 1AS 37,
To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the costs are included in the ralated right-of-use asset, untess those costs are incurred
to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease tarm and useful life of the underlying asset, If a lease transfers ownership
of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencernent date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the Statements of financial position. The Group applies [AS 36 to determing whether
a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss as described in the “Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measuremant of the lease lability and the right-of-use asset. The
related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are
included in ‘Other expenses’ in profit or loss.

As a practical expediant, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for any lease and associated
non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Group has not used this practical expedient. Far a contracts that contain 2 lease
companent and one or more additional lease or non-iease components, the Group 2llocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component an the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone arice of the non-lease
components.
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5.1

Related parties

If there have been transactions between related parties, the group discloses the nature of the refated party relationship as welt as
information about the transactions and outstanding balance necessary for an understanding of the potential effect of the relationship on
the financials statements. These disclosures are made separately for each category of related parties and include:

¢ The amount of the transactions;

*  The amounts of outstanding balances, including terms and conditions and guarantees;

s Provision for doubtful debts related to the amount of autstanding balances;

»  Expense recognhised during the period in respect of bad and doubtful debts from related parties.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it ta a variety of financial risks: market risk {including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk
and liguidity risk. The Graup's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Beard provides principles for overall
risk management, as well as policies covering spacific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of
excess liquidity. The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments for speculative purposes.

{a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate bacause of changes in market prices.

The Group's market risks arise frem open positions in,

(i) foreign currencies,

{ii} market prices, and

{ili) interest bearing assets and labilities - to the extent that these are exposed to general and specific market movements.

(i} Foreign exchange risk

Foreign currency risk is tha risk that the fair value or fusure cash flows of a financial instrurnent will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities
{when revenues or expenses are denominated in foreign currency). The Group holds foreign currency-denaminated liabilities and is therefore
exposed to foreign exchange risk. The principal technigue of the Group ta mitigate this risk is to match assets to the liabilities denominated
in foreign currency by investing in equity instruments that track the mavement in specific major currencies. For each distinct category of
liabilities, a separate portfolio of assets is maintained.

The Group trades internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising fram various currencies. The main expasure is primarily with
respeact o the Tanzanian shilling {"T2S"), Zimbabwean dollar ('ZWL'); and British pound sterling {'GBP') for the Group.

The Group’s primary method of managing foreign currency risk is to match the Group’s principal cash outflows to the currency in which the
principal cash inflows are denominated. Management monitors exposure to exchange rate fluctuations on an ongoing basis.

The sensitivity analysis below shows the effect of 10% strengthening / weakening of the Tanzanlan shilling and Zimbabwean dollar on profit
before tax, current assets and current liabilities.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currancy denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:
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5.1

Financial risk factors {continued)
(a) Market risk {continued)
{i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

Group
2022 2021 2022 2021
Base curréncy WL ZWL TZS TZS
Uss'000 uss'oan uss'ooo Uss5'000
equivalent equivalent equivalent equivalent
Assats
Trade and other receivables 1787 1324 1219 1482
Cash and hank balances 531 1921 35 15
Total assets 2318 3 245 1254 1517
Liabilities
Trade and other payables {9 821} {10 698) {1966} {1988)
Total liabilities (9 821) (16 698) {1 9686) {1965)
et currency position (7 503} {7 453) (712) {449}
Currency sensitivity analysis
Currency exchange rates to USD 2p22 2021
Tanzanian shilling {"TZ5") 2 332.99 2315.00
Zimbabwean dollar {"ZwL") 370.96 95.56
Impact of 1% increase in exchange rates ZwL WL TZ5 TZ5
Uss'000 LISs'000 uss'oco uss'ooo
For the year ended 30 June
2022 2021 2022 2021
Assets 2295 2872 1433 1433
Liakilities (9 723) (9 46%) {1964) (1 964)
Net position (7 428) (6 597) {531) {531)
USD to currency exchange rates
2022 2021
Great Britain pound ("GBP") 1.23 1.37

The sensitivity analysis below shows the effect of 10% strengthening / weakening of the Great Britain pound on profit before tax, current assets

and current liabilities.

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
+10 +10 % increase/(decrease) in foreign exchange rate +10 +10
Us$'oos U55'000 us$'000 uss'ooo
+(219) +(197) Effect on profit before income tax - -
+(219) #(197) Effect on equity -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk
{i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
GBP GBP Base currency GBP GBP
us5'o00 uss'oop uss'oca Us5'000
equivalent equivalent equivalent equivalent
Assets
3313 2851 Amounts due from group companies -
3313 2851 Total assets - -
Liabilities

- - Trade and other payables - -

- - Total liabilities - -

3313 2 851 Net currency position -

(i1} Prica risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Group, classified on the statements of financial pesition
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. To manage the price risk arising from investments in eguity securities, the Group uses an
asset manager whose mandate is to hold a diversified portfolio. The Group holds quoted securities that are listed on the Zimbabwe Stock

Exchange {"Z5E").

The table below summarises the impact of dacreases of the ZSE index on the Group’s post-tax other comprehensive income for the year and
on aquity. The analysis is based on the assurnption of a 10% increase/(decrease) in the equity index, with all other variables held constant and
all the Group's equity instruments moved according to historical correlation with the Index.

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
Us5'000 Us$'000 U5$'000 U5%$'000
Impact on pre-tax profit of Inss
- - - 10% increase/(decrease} in the ZSE index x 170 + 7

Fair vajue hierarchy
IFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflact market data obtained from independent sources, and unabservable inputs reflect the Group's market

assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:
Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active market for identiczl assets or liabilities. This levei includes listed equity securities.

Levei 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either diractly (i.e., as prices} or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices),

Level 3 - fnputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ohservable market data {unobservakle inputs). This level includes equity
investments and debt instruments with significant unobservable components. This level includes non-listed equity investments.

The hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available. The Group considers relevant and cbservable market prices in its
valuations where possible.

The following table presents the Group's financial assets that are measured &t fair value at 30 June.
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5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

5.1 Financial risk factors (continued}

{a] Market risk {[continued}

Fair value hierarchy {continued)

2022
Level 1 Level 2 Levei 3 Total
Us$'000 us$'000 us4'000 uUss'oon
Fair value through profit or toss
- Listed equity securities in Zimbabwe (note 11) 48 - - 48
Fair Value through other comprehensive income
- Unlisted shares {note 11} - - 153 133
Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
2021 uUs$'000 Us5'000 Us$'000 Uss'000
Fair value through profit or loss
- Listed equity securities in Zimbabwe {note 11) 56 - - 66
Fair Value through other comprehensive income
- Unlisted shares (note 11) - - 140 140

The above financial assets were held by the Group®s subsidiaries.
a) Financial Instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and reguiarly available from an exchange, and thase prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm's length basis. The quoted market pricas used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments includes equity investments on the Zimbabwe Stock Exchange classified as financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss.

b) Financial Instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are cbservable, tha instrument is included in Level 2. Spacific valuation techniques used
to value financial instruments include inputs other than quated prices that are observable for the asset, such as fair value for similar assets in
markets that are not active. The Group had no financial instruments measured at Level 2 (2021: nil).

¢} Financial Instruments in Level 3

The fair value of financial instruments Is determined by unobservable inputs for the asset. The value of the unlisted equities shown as Level 3
was determined by reference to a property independently valued by a valuer using observable inputs as far as practicable and using the best
information available in the circumstances, including the Group's own data, and taking into account all information about market participant

assumptions that was reasonably available.
{iii} interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from short term and long-term barrawings. Barrowings issued at variable interest rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed interast rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. At 30 June 2022, the
Group had long term horrowings of USSE 805 270 {2021: USSE 036 D00) and short term borrowings of Us$113 815 000

(2021: USS§117 705 000) (note 25).

The Group analyses its interest risk exposure on a dynanic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking inte consideration refinancing, renewal
of existing positions and alternative financing. Based on these scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on the profit or loss of a defined
interest rate shift.

The scenarios are run only far liabilities that represent major interest-bearing positions.
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5.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk {continued)
(iii) interest rate risk {continued}

Inlerest rate risk sensitivity analysis
The table below indicates sensitivity of the Group's profit or loss to a 5% change in the interest rates, with all other variables held constant:

COMPANY GROUP
Effect on profit  Effect on profit Effect on profit  Effect on profit
before tax befora tax before tax hefare tax
2021 2022 2022 2021
Us5000 usSooD us$000 us$000
1511) (511) Interest expense {13 439) {11 122)
#{511) +{511) 5% increasef{decrease} in interest rate +(13 439) +(8 433}
326 666 Interest income 5538 5012
+ 326 + 666 5% increase/{decrease) in interest rate + 2130 + 1932

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to 2 transaction will cause financial loss to the other party by failing to discharge an obfigation. Cradit risk
is managed at a subsidiary level. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as weif as
credit exposures ta customers, including autstanding recelvables and cammitted transactions. If independent ratings for customers, banks and
financial institutions are avallable, then these are used. Otherwise, management assesses the credit guality of the customers, banks and
financial instituticns, taking into account their financial positien, past experience and cther factors. Individual risk limits are based on internal
ratings in accordance with limits set by management. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Such tisks are subject to a quarterly
review,

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
Us$'000 Us$'000 uss000 US$000
The maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset is 25 follows:
Gross trade receivables, before impairment allowances:

- - raceivables from third parties (note 16) 38157 52134
1913 2 430 receivables from related parties (note 35) 5630 3959
- - other receivables excluding prepayments {note 16} 3945 4517

300 84 cash and cash equivalents (note 17} 7883 5903
2213 2514 Total neither past due not impaired 55615 70513

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair

value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group manages

the credit risk through vetting of cantract growers, monitoring of operations
and in some cases obtaining collateral from the growers.

The financial institutions holding the cash and cash equivalents of the Group
have the following external credit ratings as published by the Globai Credit
Rating Group:
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H FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

5.1 Financlal risk factors {continued)
(b} Credit risk [continued)

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
US5$'000 uss'oon Us5000 Us4$000

Rating Rating

R - AA AA 2528 4947
- - A+ Ay 4374 2198
- - A A 743 218G
300 g4 BB+ B+ B84 300
- - BB BB 1 175
- - BB- BB~ 151 42
. - Unratad Unrated 102 61
300 34 T 883 9903

{c} Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management principles imply maintaining suificient cash and the availability of funding through an adagquate amount of
committed credit facifities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
availability under committed credit lines. The Group’s policy Is to negotiate borrowing facilities with approved financial institutions based on
the existing asset base of the Group sufficient for its purposes.

Undiscounted contractual maturity
The table below analyses the Group’s financial fiabilities into relevant maturity groupings:

A maturity analysis of financial insiruments at 30 June 2022 is as follows:

On demand From 6
andlessthan From1to6 monthstol From Iyear
one month months year to 5 years Total
Us5'000 uss'000 uss'oap USs'000 USS'poo

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents {note 17} 7883 - - - 7883
Trade and other receivables {excluding prepayments) (note 16} - 38 700 5630 9493 53 823
Investmant in a joint venture (note 10.2) - ~ - 323 323
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss {note 11) a8 - - - 48
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
[note 11) - . 153 - 153
Fixed term deposit (note 11} - - . 1503 1503
Total assets 7931 33 700 5783 11 319 63733
Liabilities
Trade and other payables {excluding statutory liabiiities) (note 21){11 679) {13 442} - - {25 121)
Borrowings {note 25} {1418) (112 397} - {5 802) (119 617)
Shareholders' loans {note 26} - - - {13 303) (13 303)
Lease liabilities - - {980} {3 931) (4911)
Total labilities {13 097) {125 839) [980) {23 036) {162 952)
Liquidity gap {5 166) {87 139) 4803 (11 717) {99 219}
Cumulative gap (5 166) {92 305) (87 508) (99 219) -
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5.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk factors {continued}

(¢) Liquidity risk {continued)

Undiscounted contractual maturity {continued)

A maturity analysis of financial instruments at 30 June 2021 is as follows:

On demand from 6
and ‘ess than Fromitoc6 monthstol From 1vyear
one month months year 1o 5 years Total
Uss'000 uss$'coo Us5'000 US$000 Uss'oco

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents {note 17) 9903 - - - 94903
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments) (note 16} - 55 566 3959 5795 65320
Investment in a joint venture {note 10.2) - - - 326 328
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (note 11) 66 - - - 66
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
{note 11) - - 140 - 140
Fixed term deposit - B - 1500 1500
Total 9 569 55 566 4093 7621 77255

On demand From6

and less than  From1to6 rmonthstel From 1year
one month months year to 5 years Total
Uss'000 uss$'000 LU8$'000 uss'ooo uUss'00o

Liabilities
Trade and other payables (excluding statutory liabilities) {note 21){11 579 {4 945} - - (16 924)
Borrowings (note 25} {891) (116 818) - {6 036) (123 745)
Shareholders' loans (note 26) - - - (12 794) {12 794)
Lease liabilities - - (574) {1 408) (2 382)
Total labilities {12 870) (121 763) 974 {20 238) {155 B45)
Liquidity gap (2 901) {66 197} 3125 {12 617} (78 590)
Cumulative gap {2 901) {69 098) (65 973) {78 590} -

The majar contributor to the liquidity gap is Narthern Tobacco (Private) Limited with borrowings of USS110 799 963 at 30 June 2022

{2021: US5114 538 493) hecause of the financing required for contracted growers for inputs for the next season’s fobacco crop, but before
starting to ship the processed tobacco to their customers and generating revenue.

The Group has sufficient headroom on its committed borrowing facilities to meet its operational ¢cash needs in the event own cash resoucces
are inadequate. In addition, the Group's working capitat cycle has historically provided encugh cover for hoth current and nen-current
obligations as they arise.

Cash flew forecasting is performed in the operating entities of the Group and monitored and managed by Greup management, who monitor
the rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure that it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining
sufficient headroom on its undrawn, committed borrowing facifities at all times so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or
covenants oh any of its berrowing facilitizs, Such forecasting takes into consideration the Group’s debt financing plans, covenant compliance,
compliance with internal statement of financial position ratio targets and, if applicable external regulatory or legal requirements. The Group's
policy is to negotiate borrowing facilities with approved financial institutions based on the existing asset base of the Group sufficient for its
purposes.
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5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

5.1 Financial risk factors {(continued)

A maturity analysis of financizl instruments for the Company at 30 June 2022 is as follows:

On demand From &
and lessthan  From1to6 monthstol From 1year
one month months yaar to 5 years Total
Uss'00o uss$'oo0 uss'oon uss'ooo Us5'000
Assets
84 - - - 84
- - 2430 - 2430
- - - 27 243 27243
84 - 2430 27 243 25797
On demand From 6
and lass than From1ito6 monthstol From 1year
one month maonths year to 5 years Total
Uss'eo0 Us$'o00 uss$'o00 uUss$'000 uss'o0o
Liabilities
(1589) - - - {1599)
- - - {13 128} (13 128)
- - - {600} (600)
- - - (1 345) {1 345)
{1 599) - - {15 073) {16 672)
(1515) - 2430 12 159 13085
{1515} {1515) g15 13 085 -

Cash and cash equivalents {note 17)
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments)
Amounts due from group companies

Trade and other payabies (excluding statutory
liabilities) (note 21)
Shareholder foans {note 26)

Aamounts due to group companies

Borrowings

Liquidity gap

Cumulative gap

A maturity analysis of financial instruments for the Company at 30 June 2021 is a3 follows:

On demand From 6
and lessthan  From1tio6 monthstol From 1 year
one month months year to 5 years Total
uss'o0e Uss'000 Li55'000 US$'000 uss'ono
Assets

300 - - - 300
- - 1913 - 1913
- - - 26623 26623
300 1913 26623 28 836
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5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuad)

5.1 Financiai risk factors [continued)

Liabilities
{1123} - - (274) {1397) Trade and other payables (excluding statutory
liabilities) {note 21)
- - (12 657) (12 667) Shareholders' loans (note 26)
- - - (600) {600) Amounts due to group companies
- - - (1297) (1297) Borrowings
(1123) - - (14 838} {15961}
(823) - 1913 11785 12875 Liquidity gap
823} (823) 1090 12 875 - Cumulative gap

The Group's liquidity gap in the period beyand 1 year is & result of sharehalder loans, which are however not repayable any time in the near
future (note 26).

5.2 Capital risk management

The Group's ohjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability 10 continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for cther stakeholders, and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. in order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capita to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

COMPANY

The gearing ratios at 30 June were as follows: GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
usso00 Uss000 us5000 us$o00
- - Shert term borrowings {note 25} 113 815 117 705
1297 1345 Long term borrawings {note 25.4} 6 805 5036
. - Lese liahilities 4911 2382
1257 1345 Total bosrowings 125531 126 123
(300) (84) Less cash and cash equivalents (note 17) {7 BB3) {2903}
597 1261 Net borrowings 117 648 116220
16953 19 048 Total equity 142 366 73922
6% 7% Gearing ratio 82% 157%

5.3 Risk management - agricultural activitias

The Group is exposed to risks arising from climate changes, commodity prices and financing risk due 1o the nature of its operations. It manages
this risk through insurance cover, where possible, For example, approximately 40% of tobacco grown for the Group is grown under irrigation,
and compared to other crops, tobacce prefers drier weather conditions. Funding is therefore negotiated prior to the growing season on the
back of good quality, corporate guarantees. Demand and prices are also discussed and agreed with the customars prior to the growing season.
In addition, there is a risk of side marketing by contract growers, which the Group manages by timing the purchases from these growers at the
same time as the tobacco auction floors, and by offering competifive prices to dissuade this practice.
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6.1

6.2

6.2.1

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES QF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

in the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in nate 4, the directors of the Group are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 16 accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will by definition, seldom equal the
refated actual results. The critical judgements that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the current financial year are discussed below:

Assumptions for determining fair value of biological assets

As required by IAS 41, ‘Agriculture’, the Group shows the carrying value of biclogical assats in the statements of financial position determined
according to the provisions of IAS 41 with the net valuation movements shown in the statements of profit and loss.

Consideration of hyperinfiation reporting

Several of the Group's material subsidiaries operate in Zimbabwe. In light of the high inflation rate in the country (191.6% in June 2022) (106%
in June 2021) all the entities whose functional currency is ZWL prepared financial statements in accordance to 1AS 29, Financial Reporting in in
Hyperinflationary Economies.

The historical cost information has been adjusted for changes in the general purchasing power of the Zimbabwe Dollar and appropriate
adjustments and reclassifications have been made. IAS 29 requires that financial statements prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy be stated in terms of a measuring unit cureent at the statament of financial position date, and that corresponding figures for previous
periods he stated in the same terms to the latest statement of financial position date. The adjustment has been calculated by means of
conversion factors derived from the consumer price index {CPI) prepared by the Zimbabwe Central Statistical Office. The adjusted statements
of financial position numbers were converted to USD using the closing rate.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
pericd that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

impairment losses on trade and other receivahies

Trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate the expected cradit losses {ECLs) for trade receivables. The provision matrix is initially based on
the Group’s historical observed default rate, which is an estimate of the likelibood of default over a given time horizon. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of an asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default octurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.

it considers avzilahle reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking Information.
The forward-looking infarmation is based on assumptions for the future movement of different econamic drivers and how these drivers will
affect each other. At every reporting date, the historical observed defzult rates 2re updated and changes in the farward-looking estimates are

analysed.
The assessment of the correlation between historicat observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is & significant estimate.

The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions.
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6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.4

6.2.5

6.2.6

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY {continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables (continued

Contract grower receivables

The Group bases its prowvision on the contracted grower's profitability on a seasonal basis. The Group's agronomists exercise significant
judgement in estimating the yield, expected prices to be realised by the growers, based on periodic crop assessments and market conditions.
The agronemists lock at the forecast weather patterns and the histarical performance of the grower in coming up with the yields and quality
to be obtaired by the grower.

In addition, the Group only considers 60% of the value of immovable security and 40% for movable security for the defaulting growers in
arriving at the irrecoverable amount due to the uncertainty araund realising the full value of the security in a forced sale sitwation.

The impairment allowance for ZWL denominated grower receivables is fundamentally impacted by estimation uncertainty stemming from the
future volatility of the ZWL/USD exchange rate which impacts the USD value that can be recovered,

Income taxes

The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences willimpact the income tax and defarred
tax liabilities in the period in which such determinaticn is made.

Useful lives and values of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on projected Hfecycles for these assets. Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
astirnated, or it will write off or write down, techaically obsalete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and fiabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purpeses. The board of directors of the Group has
delegated responsibility to the Chief Financial Officer of the Group to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements. |n estimating the fair value of an asset or a ligbility, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.

Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The CFO warks closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation technigues and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer reports
the findings to the board of directors of the Group every year to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and fiabilities.

Determination of lease terms

In determining the lease terms, management considers all the facts and circumstances that create an econarnic incentive to exercise an
extension option. The assessment is reviewed is a significant event or change in circumstances occurs which affect his assessment. To that end,
the Group assessed that, in terms of the business models in effect, no leased premises would be closed and as such the entity will likely to
exercise evary renewal optien. Pursuant to the assessment, the renewal eptions were considered for each lease.

Determination of the Incremental Borrowing Rate
In determining the appropriate discount rate to be used in the calculation of the lease liability and right of use asset, management considered
a number of important factors, many of which needs data points in order to reliably quantify any necesssry adjustments to arrive at the final

discount rates. The discount rate used originate from a reference rate selected by management which reflect the econamic environment and
the lease term and this was adjusted by lease specific adjustments as well as forecast econamic environment.
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7 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
Biological assets comprise livestock, planted wheat, avocados and unharvested timber.

7.1 Analysis by group of hiclogical assets

At 30 June 2022, biological assets were as follows:

GROUP
2022
Unharvested
Timber Livestock Wheat produce Total
uss'ooo Uss'000 us5'000 Us5'000 uss'000
Carrying amount at 1 July 2021 17 142 618 - 777
Increase in unharvested produce - - - 559 559
Increase due to acguisition 43 495 - - - 434395
Decrease due to disposal - - (618) - (618)
Change in fair valve due to biological transformation 135 124 - - 259
Transfer to inventories {317) - - - (317)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2022 43330 266 - 559 44 155
At 30 June 2021, biological assets were as follows:
GROU?P
2021
Unharvested

Timber Livestock Wheat produce Total
LUs$’000 uss’o00 Uss'000 yss$'oo00 uss$'o00
Carrying amount at 1 duly 2020 17 152 223 - 392
Increase due to purchases - - 1849 - 1849
Change in fair value due to hiological transformation - (10} - - (10}
Transfer to inventories - - (1454) - (1454}
Carrying amount at 30 June 2021 17 142 618 - 777
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7 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued]

7.1 Analysis by group of hiological assets {continued)

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
Uss'000 Us5'000 Uss'000 us$'000
Non-current
- - Timber 38 366 -
- - Livestock 266 142
- - 38632 142
Current
Unharvested produce 559 -
- - wheat - 618
- - Timber 4964 17
- - 5523 535
- - Total 44 155 777

7.2 Measuring biclogical assets at fair value

Livestock are measured at fair value Jess costs to sell, based on market prices of livestock of similar age and breed, with adjustments, where
necessary, to reflect the differences. Market prices are obtained from auctioneers, which is considered the principal market for the purpose
of the valuation. The fair value of growing avocados and wheat is determined using cash flow models based on the expected avocado tree and
pianted wheat ta maturity. The level 2 fzir value of the Group's wheat is determined by using market prices of harvested produce at 30 Jung
2022, less estimated additional production costs and costs to sell,

7.3 Fair value hierarchy
The foliowing table represents the Group's biological assets that were measured at fair value at 20 June 2022;

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Uss'000 Uss'000 uss'ooe U55'000
Livestock

Mature - - 266 266

Unharvested produce
Avocados - - 5539 559
Timber - - 43330 43 330
B - 44 155 44155

The following table represents the Group’s biological assets that were measured at fair value at 3¢ June 2021;

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
uss'ooo US5'000 us$'oon Uss'000
Livestock

Mature - - 142 142
- - 142 142

Unharvested produce
Wheat - 618 - 518
Timber - - 17 17
- 618 159 777
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RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THEYEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

8

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group tests whether property, plant and equipment has suffered any impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recovered.

Assets pledged as security
The following table presents the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment pledged as coflateral for borrowings {note 25); {some
of the Group's property, plant and equipment are unencumbered).

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
U55$'000 Us5'000 uss'goo Uss$'oon
Land and buildings
- - - Tanzania cperations 2834 2884

Plant and machinery

- - - Tanzania operations 15 740 16334
- - - Zimbabwe operations 1752 3031
. B 17492 18 365
. - 20 326 22245

Valuation process

According ta the Group policy, property, plant and eguipment are revalued at least once in every three years or sooner where Group
managemeant believes there have been significant movements in fair value, as has been the case over the past two years with asset
vatuations in Zimbabwe. The fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2022 were performed by Tunmer
Ridley, independent valuers not related to the Group, Tunmer Ridley are licenced property brokers, and they have appropriate
gualifications and recent experience in the fair value measurement of properties in the relevant locations.

The valuation conforms to International Valuation Standards and was based on recent market transactions on arm’s length terms for
similar progerties.

The fair value measurements of property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2022 were determined by management, with reliance on
independent valuers {including Tunmer Ridley), where necessary, and following a similar valuaticn approach to licenced, independent
valuers. Valuations were made on the basis of recent market transactions on arm’s length terms, or close estimates for specialised and
limited markets. Prior to that, property, plant and equipment had been revalued at 30 June 2019.

If property, plant and equipment were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
Us$'000 Uss'000 us$'000 Us$'000
- - Cost 36 257 55301
" - Accunmulated depreciation and impairment {4271) (10 258)
- - Net carrying amount 31986 45043

Fair values of property, plant and equipment

Fair value measurements for property, plant and equipment are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
ta the fair value measurements are cbservable, reliable, and the significance of the inputs ta the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows;

= Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

= Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observahie for the asset ar liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

s Level3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2027

B PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT [continued)

Fair values of property, plant and equipment [continued)
The revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred income taxes was credited to other camprehensive income and is shown in the Other
reserves (note 19).

Fair value hierarchy
The following table analyses the fair values of property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2022:

Level 1 tevel 2 Level 3 Total
uss'oao USs$'000 uss'ooo Uss'o00

Property, plant and equipment
- Land and buildings - - 66910 66 910
« Plant and machinery - - 14 700 14 700
- Motor vehicles and tractors - - 2215 2215
- Fixtures, fittings and computers - - 1287 1287
- - 85112 851312

The following table analyses the fair values of property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2021:

Levell Level 2 Level 3 TFotal
Us5'c00 uss$'coo us$'000 us$'o00

Property, plant and equipment
-land and buildings - - 22112 22112
- Plant and machinery - - 25974 25974
- Motor vehicles and tractors - - 1797 1797
- Fixtures, fittings and computers - - 1242 1242
- - 51125 51125

Non-financial assets in Level 3
The values of the propeny, plant and equipment shown as Level 3 were determined by the independent valuers using observable inputs
as comparable prices in the local economies. However, an adjustment factor for the age and condition was effected.

Asset class Key inputs
Land and buildings - location and size of land
- the age and condition of the huildings
- comparable prices in the local economy
- reconstruction costs of the buildings to come up with
replacement costs per square metre

Pfant and machinery - production capacity
- the age and condition of the equipment
- comparable prices in the local economy
- technology ohsolescence of the plant and machinery

Vehicles - the age and condition of the vehicles
- camparable prices in the local economy

Furniture and fittings - the age and condition of the furniture
- comparable prices in the local economy

Bearer plants and immature plantations

Bearer plants, immature plantations and capital work in progress are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment.
The area under plantation for each type of bearer biological assets was as shown below for each year end.
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RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS tLIVIITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHEYEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022 " oo e s o immme o e

3

8.1

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {continued)
Leases

Right of use assets
The statemeants of financial position shows the foltowing amounts relating to leases of land and buildings:

2022 2021
us‘o0n us‘ooo
Cost
At 1 July 5270 3387
Modifications 2679 1444
Additions 2026 1126
Disposal of subsidiary - (687)
Reclassified as held for sale {210} -
At 30 June 9 765 5270
Accumulated depreciation
At 1)uly {2 855} {1252)
Charge for the year (2176) (1 603)
At 30 June {5031} {2 855)
Carrying amount
At 30 June 2022 4734 2415
The Group feases several assets including land and buildings. The average lease term is 5 years (2021: 5 years).
Amaunt recognised in profit or loss. Lease modification arose from 'ease remeasurements in years under review.
GROUP
2022 2021
Us5'600 Us$000
Depreclation expense on right-of-use assets (2 176) {1 603}
Interest expense on lease labilities {595) (315)
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RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
COMPANY
2021 2022 Computer Software
uss00o Uss'000
Cost
- - At 1 )uly
- - Additions

- - Transfer in from Capital work in progress
- - Translation differences
- - Reclassified as held for sale

Disposal

- - At 3D June

Accumulated amortisation
" - At 1 July
- - Reclassified as held for sale
- - Charge for the year

At 30 June
- - Carrying amount at 30 June

10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES

10.1  lnvestments in subsidiaries

COMPANY
2021 2022
uss5'o00 Us5°000
500 500 Streamcourse Limited (note 35)
7308 7 30% Precis {2696} Limited {note 35)
630 530 Rift Valley Energy Investments Limited (note 35)
8439 8§ 435

10.2 Investment ip a joint venture

The Group has a 50% interest in Chipinge Banana Group {Private) Limited
("CBC"), a banana pregucer, and this is jointly controlled with Matanuska
{Private) Limited.

COMPANY
2021 2022
Uss'000 Us5'000
- - At1luly
- - Share of {loss)/profit for the year
- - Equity-accounted share of other comprehensive income

- - Gain cnrevaluation of property, plant and eguipment

- - At 30 June

GROUP

2022 2021

Uss$'000 Uss$'000

796 710

324 22

a78 -

- 64

(48) -

(246} -

1304 796

{356) {191)

4 .

(122) {165)

(484} {356)

820 440
GROUP

2022 z021

Uss'goo Us5'000
GROUP

2022 2021

Us5'000 us$'n0o

326 300

(705) 26

702 -

702 -

323 326

The Group's share of net profit from the jointly controlled entity has been equity

accounted in the Group's financial statements,
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10 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES (continued)

10.2  Investment in a joint venture [continued)

Summarised joint venture’s staterment of profit or loss and comprehensive income

Revenye

Cost of sales

Fair value gain on biological assets
Other operating income
Administration expenses

Other expenses

Net finance costs

Income tax {expense)/credit

(Loss)/profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive {loss)/income
Reconciliation of summarised financial information
Opening net assets 1 July
{tass)/profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Clasing net assets
Interest in joint venture (%)
Carrying amount of interest in joint venture {USS'000)
11 INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS
COMPANY

2021 2022

us$'000 Us$'000

investrments in equity instruments designated as at FYTOCI
- - Shares

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL
- - Shares

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
- - Fixed term deposit

- - Total investments

60

2022 2021
LSs'000 Us$'000
2341 2536
{654) {1152}
695 642
1 10
{1534 {600}
{2 183) {1 3a1)
(36) (130}
(20} 68
{1410) 53
1404 -
(6] 532
652 559
{1410} 53
1404 -
646 652
50% 50%
323 326
GROUP
2022 2021
USS$'000 Us5'000
Non-Current
153 140
43 66
1503 1500
1704 1706




RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR-THE-YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE- 2022~ om0 somsmm o o e

11 INVESTMENTS IN FINANCIAL ASSETS [continued)

Fair vafues of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at FVTOCI consist of an investment in unlisted equities beld in Alkopo [Private} Limited which is 100% owned by Northern
Tobacco (Private] Limited. Alkopo has a single building held by the company for capitai appreciation no other transactions are processed
other than the valuation of the building and the corresponding Fair valuation in the investment.

A valuation was performed by independent valuers Tunmer & Ridley to determine the fair value of the investment property at 30 June
2022. Tummer & Ridley have over 6 years' experience revaiuing similar assets.

The table below summarises the Group's financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 30 lune:

tevel1 Levef 2 Level 3 Total

uss uss uss uss

Unlisted equities 2022 - - 153 109 153 109
Unlisted equities 2021 - - 140 000 140 000

Fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The financial instruments at fair value through profit or lass comprise securities listed on the Zimbabwe Stock Exchange. The fair values
af all equity securities is based on their current bid prices in an active market. Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss are recorded in "other income * in the statements of proflt or loss.

The fair value of financial instrurnents traded in an active market (Zimbabwe Stock Exchange} is based on guoted market grices at 30
June 2022, These instruments are inciuded in Level 1.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

uss uss uss uss

Listed equities 2022 47 714 - - 47714

Listed equities 2021 66 934 - - 66 934

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

COMPANY GROUP

2021 2022 2022 2021

uss'oo0 Uss' 000 Us$'000 Uss'000

- - Balance as at 1 july 670 692

- - Fair value gain/(loss) {note 30) 135 22}

- - Balance as at 30 June 805 670

Rental income from the investment property was U5532 130 for the
year ended 30 june 2022 (2021: USS7 371). There were no direct
operating expenses on the investment property recognised in the year
ended 30 June 2022 (2021: nil}.

Measuring investment property at fair value
thvestment properties [commercial warehouses and residential properties) is not occupied by the Group and is held for capital

appreciation. It is leased out, and is not pledged as security on any loans.

The Group carries investment property at fair value. Changes in fair value are presented in the statements of profit or loss and cther
comprehensive income as part of other gains and losses. Fair valuation was performed by Tummer & Ridley independent valuer with

over 6 years’ experience,

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value was determined based on the market-comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for similar properties,
similar to the valuation appreach for praperty under IAS 16 {note 8}. Rental income is based on the income based approach.

An independent valuation was obtained, using observable inputs such as quoted prices for similar buildings in the same Incation and cost
price per square metre for land in the same area, for market transactions on an arm's length basis. The valuation was based on

international valuation standards,
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12 INVESTMENT PROPERTY |continued)

Fair value hierarchy {continued)
The table below summarises the Group's investment property that is measured at fair value at 30 june:

Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
uss'000 US$'000 uss'o00 U53'000

2022
Investment property - - 305 805
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2021 Ls$'000 us$rooo uss'ooo Us$'000
Investment property - - 670 670

The groug recognises Investment property at fair value using level 3 inputs and this has not changed from prior year. Valuation technigue
utilised is determined per Key inputs table.

Non-financial assets in Level 3

The values of the investment property shown as Level 3 were determined by the independent valuers using observable inputs as
comparable prices in the local econamy as far as practicable at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, as well as the best information available
in the circumstances, adjusted for the below;

Key inputs

Significant unobservable Sensitivity

input

Valuation technigue

13

Commercial property units
located in Harare

Market comparable

Comparable market
information of invesiment
which makes evidence to
be scarce or difficult to
ohtain, hence there tend to
be informal exchange of
informaticn

An increase in investment
would result in an increase
in fair value and vice-versa

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

COMPANY
2021 2p22
us$'000 uss3'000
Amortised cost
1913 2430
300 84
2213 2514

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss.

COMPANY
2021 2022
Us5'000 US$'000

Assets as per statemnents of financial position

Trade and other receivables {excluding prepayments and statutory) i5
Investment in a joint venture

Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed term

Listed equities

62

GROUP

2022 2021
US$'000 USS'000

Amortised cost
51 445 62 504
10.2 323 326
17 7 8B3 94903
11 1503 1500
61 154 74 233

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

GROUP
2022 2021
USS'000  WSS$'000

11 48
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13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued}

Financial assets at fair value through Financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income

other comprehensive income

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
uss'000 uss'ooo uUs5'008  USS'000
- - Unlisted equities 11 153 140
tiabilities as per statements of financial position
COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
uss'o0o Us$°000 uss'000  USS'00D
Amaortised cost Amartised cost
1397 1599 Trade and other payables (excluding statutory liabilities) 21 25121 17027
12 667 13128 Shareholder loans 2% 13303 12 794
1297 11345 Borrowings {including overdrafts) 25 119617 123 741
- - Lease iiabilities 24 4911 2382
15361 16072 162 952 155944
13 INVENTORIES
COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 202z 2021
uss'ono Uss'o00 uss'000 uss'o00
- - Consumablas 13034 10220
- - Finished goods 13392 17873
- - Agricultural praduce 3 806 4612
- - Raw materials 45 146 45703
- - Wark in progress 484 -
- - Totsl inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 75 862 78 408
The amaunt of inventaries expensed and included in cost of sales is
US5112 006 937 {2021: USS113 138 353).
The amount of write down of inventories recognised in expenses is
US540 824 {2021: U55367 272).
15 CONTRACT GROWER RECE!VABLES
COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
Us3'000 uss'000 UsS$'000 uss'oos
Mon-current
- - Contract grower receivables 5020 2460
Current
- - Contract grower receivables 48 708 39530
- Total 57 728 41990
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15 CONTRACT GROWER RECE{VABLES {continued)

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
uss'o00 Us5'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
- - Gross contract grower receivables 51 148 43 699
- - Less: allowance for credit losses (3 836) (2 247}
- - Met contract grower receivables 57 312 41452
- - Contract grower receivables from related parties {note 35(b)(i)} 416 "t v °g3g vt
- - Non-current contract grower {(9020) (2 460}
- - Lurrent contract growers 48 708 39530

The grass contract grower receivables relate to finance capital provided
to contracted farmers in contract-grower schemes. Interest is charged
on the loans at 9% - 14% p.3. and the loans have a repayment pariod of
one to three years.

At 30 June 2022, contract grower receivabies of US$59 780 990
(2021: US541 720 660 ) were fully performing.

At 30 June 2022, contract grower receivables of US$170 317

{2021: USS268 868) were past due but not impaired. These refate to a
number of independent counter parties for whom there is no recent
history of default. The aging of these receivables was as follows:

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
uUss'00o uss'oao Uss'000 Uss'000
The ageing of these receivables is as follows:
- - Up to one year 170 269
- - 170 269

At 30 June 2022 contract grower receivables of USS3 836 356
[2021: US52 247 059) were impaired,

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
Us$'000 Us5'000 uss$'000 Us5'000
The ageing of these contract growers was as follows:
- - Uptoone year 313836 2247

- Greater than one year - -

- 31336 2247
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15 CONTRACT GROWER RECEIVABLES {continued)

COMPANY

202)
US$'000

2022
uss'o0o

Movements on the allowance for impairment of contract grower

receivables is as follows:

Balance at & July

Utllisations in respect of permanent-write offs on balances previously

coverad by impairment allowances

Increase in provision impairment allowance

Impairments arising from s weakened ZWL/USD exchange rate as at year

end that may lead to reduced USD recoverzble on ZWL

denominated grower advances

Balance at 30 June

The ¢reation and release of allowance for impaired receivables have been included
in administration expenses {note 32.2) in the statements of profit or loss.
Amounts chargad to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no

expectation of recovery.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the ¢arrying value of the
receivables. The Group holds collateral against contract grower receivablas as security
armounting to US$2 314 836 [2021: USS1 334 859). A haircut of 60% on the valuation

of properties, and 40% on the ather assets values was applied.
Short terms loans (note 25.2) are secured by all inventories, trade and other

receivables, and contract grower receivables.

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

COMPANY
2021 2022
Uss'oo0 USS$000
1913 2430
1913 2430
1913 2430

Non-current (contract grower)

Current
Trade receivables
Loss allowance

Trade receivables - net

Prepayments

Receivables from related parties (note 35(b}{i})
Staff loans

Value addeg tax ("VAT"} recoveries

Other receivables

Tatal

65

GROUP
2022 2021
Us$'000 Us$'ooo
2247 8161
{300} (6 557)
1733 353
156 300
3836 2247
GROUP
2022 2021
Us$'000 USS'000
7 063 5795
38157 52134
(972} (1 085)
37185 51048
1755 1057
5 B30 3959
252 1
2378 2823
1315 1697
48515 60 586
55578 66 381
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i6

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal 1o lifetime £CL. The expected credit [osses on
trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the
debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operzle and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
uss'ooo uss'ooo Uss$'000 Us$'000
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are
denominated in the foliowing currencies:
1913 2430 United States of America Dollar 52572 63575
. - Zimbabwe Dollar 1787 1324
- - Tanzanian Shilling 1219 1482
1913 2430 55578 66 381
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivabie.
The Group’s historical cradit loss experience doas not show any loss patterns.
The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables based on the Group’s provision matrix.
2022
Not past due <30 63i-90 91-120 120 Total
Expected credit loss rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 3%
uss'ogo Us5'000 Uss'anon LISS'000 uss'000  ussoon
Estimated total gross carrying armount at default 3359 700 208 2137 32 400 38 804
Expected credit losses - - - - o72 972
2021
Not past due <30 61-90 91-120 >120 Total
Expected credit loss rate 3% 0% 0% 0% 3%
uss'o0no uss'o0g uss'oon uss'oco USS'000  UsS5'000
Estimated total gross carrying amount at default 33 222 378 284 11 2945 35 840
- - - 28 1085

Expected credit losses 997

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade and other receivables in accordance with

the simplified approach setout in IFRS 5.

Balance as at 1 July
Impairment (note 32.3)

Balance as at 30 June
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2022 2021

Us$'000 us$'000
1085 1157
(113) (72)
972 1085
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
Us5'000 uss$'poo us$'000 US5'000
. - Cash on hand 140 460
- - Mobile money balances - 3
300 84 Cash at banks 7743 9 440
300 84 7 883 9303
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates,
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and equivalents comprise the
following at 30 June.
Reconciliation to statements of cash flows
The above figures recongile to the amcunt of cash shown in the
statements of cash flows at the end of the financial year as follows:
COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
Uss'000 Us5$'000 uss'000 us5'00D
300 84 Cash at banks and on hand 7 883 3903
- - Bank overdrafts {note 25.1) {1418) (891)
300 84 6 465 9012
18 SHARE CAPITAL
COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
Us$'000 Us$'000 US5'000 Us$'000
Issued share capital
95 95 Share capita! 95 95
78192 78192 Share premium 78 192 78192
78 287 78 287 78 287 78 287

Issued share capital comprises 95 381 fully paid ordinary shares
{2021: 95 381) of USS$1 each. Rift Valley Corporation owns 160% of the ordinary shares.

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry na right to fixed income, shareholders enjoy
voling rights, attend general meetings of the Company and are alsc entitled to the Company’s surpius
profits.

13 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE AND OTHER RESERVES

Foreign currency transtation reserve

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
uss'o00 uss'000 ss'ong US5'000
- - Balance at 1 July (3 181) |6 766}
- - Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations {958) 3585
- - Balance at 30 June (¢ 149) {3 181}
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19 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE AND OTHER RESERVES (continued)

Revaluation reserve

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
Uss'000 uss$'ooo us$'000 us$'ooo
- - Balance at 1 July 9 R16 11742
- - increase/{tecrease} on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 10054 (1818)
- - Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation (973) -
- share of joint venture inuigase on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 702 -
- - Share of non-controifing interests {423) 109
. - Transfer to retained earnings {161) (217}
- - Balance at 30 June 19015 9 816

Other reserves

COMPANY GROUP
221 2022 2022 2021
US$'000 Us$'000 us$'000 Uss'000
- - Balance at I July 1543 1543
- - Gain through fair value through OCI 13 -
1556 1543

Exchange differances relating to the translation of the results and net assets of the Group's foreign operations from their functional
currencies to the Group's presentation currency {i.e. United States Dollar), are recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.

Exchange differences previously accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve in respect of translating the net assets of foreign
operations are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign operstion.

When the revalued items are sold, the proportion of the revaluation reserve that relates to that asset is transferred directly to retained
earnings. ltems of other comprehensive income included in the property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or foss.

The non-distributable reserve of US$1 543 812 arose on curfency adjustment from the net effect of restatement in United States of
America Dallars of assets and labilities previously denominatad in the now de-monitized Zimbabwean Dollar currency on 1 February

2009.
20 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
GROUP

2022 2021
us3'000 Us5'000
Balance as at 1 July 4738 5143
Share of profit/{loss) for the year 1037 {296}
Share of other comprehensive income 423 (109}
Other adjustments 506 -
Regain of control of Border Timbers Limited 6182 -
Balance as at 30 june 13 286 4738

Transactions with non-contralling interests
During the year ended 30 June 2022 the group regained 87.94% contral in Border Timbers Limited when it exited judicial management

on the ist March 2022.
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21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

COMPANY GROQUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
Uss'000 US$'000 USS'000 uss'000
- - Trade payables 11 679 11979
- - Social security and other taxes 575 580
- - Related parties {note 35{b}{i}} 18 -
1397 1599 Other payables 13404 5048
1397 1589 25695 i7 617
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 100 days.
Other payables are also non-interest bearing and have varying settlement terms.
22 GRANTS
COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
Us5'000 uss'oo0 US5'000 ussono
- - Balance at 1July 9 095 9317
- - Received during the year 27 148
- - Recognised in the statements of profit or loss {note 23) 680} {396)
- - Exchange losses (note 38) (36) 25
- - Reclassified to Yabilities held for sale {8 406) -
- - Balance at 30 Jjune - 9995
Grants were racejved from the Africa Enterprise Challenge Fund, Eurvpean Uniun,
Rural Energy Agency and Energy for Impact for the development of electricity generating
plants of the Rift Valley Energy group at Mwenga, Luponde and Tukuyu in Tanzania.
Ouring FY22, this business has been discontinved and disclosed in Note 39
They are released to the statements of profit or loss incame as income when the
project starts generating electricity and over the expected useful life of the asset.
23 DEFERRED TAX
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred income tax liahilities is as fallows:
COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
Uss'000 uss'0oo Uss'o00 uss'poo
Deferred tax assets:
- - - Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months 1372 2 368
- . 1372 2368
Deferred tax liabilities:
- - - Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after more than 12 months (10 410} 18 6B4)
. {10 410} |18 684)
- - Deferred tax liahilities {net) (8 038) {6 316)
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23 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

COMPANY
2021 2022
Uss'oo0 Uss'000

The gross movement on the deferred tax account is as folfows:
- - Balance at beginning of year
- - Tax charged relating to components of other comarehensive income
- - Tax charged to statements profit or loss {note 31)
- - At acquisition of Border Timbers Limited {note 33.2}
- - Disposal of a subsidiary (note 33.1}
- - Discontinued operations (note 38)
- - Exchange differences

- - Balance st end of year

Analysis of deferred tax:
- - Revaluation of property, plant and equipment
- - Assessable tax losses
- - Expected credit losses
- - Other timing differences

24 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

24,1 Deferred Revenue and Deferred Consideration

COMPANY
2021 2022
Us$'000 uss'000
4161 2476 Non-current
- B Current
4161 2476
Non-current assets consist of funds owed for acquisition of
Precis (2656) Limited a subsidiary.
COMPANY
2021 2022
Us$'000 uss$'o00
5689 4161 Balance at 1 July
- - Additions
(43) 138 Amoprtised to income
(1 485) {1823) Paid during the year
Reclassified to liabilities held for sale
- - Translation differences
4161 2476 Balance at 30 fune
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GROUP
2022 2021
US5'000 US$'000
{6 316) (5613)
{973) -
3 808 {1 658)
{14 518) -
207 .
2017 -
6735 953
(9 038} {6316)
(1178} (780)
(30) (31)
(1 184) {820)
(6 646) (4 685}
(9 038} (6 316)
GROUP
2022 2021
uUs$'000 Uss$'000
2476 4297
- 23
1476 4320
GROUP
2022 2021
us3'000 US%'000
4320 5832
157 -
(25) -
{1823) {1485}
{152) -
(1) (27}
2476 4320
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24,2

25

CONTRALT LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities

The statement financial position shows the fallowing amounts relating ta leases:

Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5
Onwards

Less: unearned interest

Analysed as
Non-current
Current

At 30 June

BORROWINGS
short term borrowings

COMPANY
2021 2022
us$'o0o Us3'000

Bank overdrafts [25.1)
Short terr Joans {25.2)

GROUP
2022 2021
Uss'o00 Us$°000
2327 1094
1347 1092
1030 294
678 207
274 29
{745} (334)
4511 2 382
3931 1408
480 974
4911 2382

GROUP
2022 2021
Us5'000 LiS5'000
1418 891
112397 116 814
113 815 117 705

The reconciliation below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from facilities used to finance working capital.

COMPANY
2021 2022
USS'000 Uss'o00

Opening balance

Proceeds received during the year

Bank overdraft utilisation

Finance tosts {note 37)
Principal repayments
Interest repayments

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 33.1}
Discontinued operations (note 38}
Exchange differences on borrowings denominated in ZWL

Closing balance
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GROUP
2022 2021
us$'c00 Uss'000
117 705 64 566
158 926 184 063

. 616

12614 9 364
{153 721) {117 643)
(11 826) (8 813)
{54) -

{4 102) -
{5727) {14 442)
113815 117 705
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25

25.1

BORROWINGS {continued)

Overdrafts, conditions and status at 30 June 2022

- Border Timbers Limited had a 12 months ZWL revolving overdraft facility with ZB Bank Limited
equivalent to US$84 702 at 30 June 2022 at an interest rate of 54.78%

The facility Is not secured and expires on 31 December 2022.

- Northern Farming (Private} Limited had an overdraft facility with CABS Limited equivalent to USS 54 406
at 30 June 2021.

- Makandi Estates (Private) Limited had an overdraft facility with CABS limited equivalent to U5542 194
&t 30 June 2021.

‘The Facilities expired 31 January 2022 and were not renewed.

- Mwenga Hydro Limitad overdraft was US$210 000, charged interest at a floating rate of the
Weighted Average Time Deposit Rate {WATDR) published by the Bank of Tanzania plus a fixed margin
of 500 basis points (subject to a minimum rate of 12% per annum). The average rate for the year was
13.5% pa {2019: 13.5% pa).

The total facility of U5$330 000 is unsecured.

-Tobacco Processors Zimbabwe ZWL overdraft and short term facility equivalent to US5323 485 with
Nedbank Zimbabwe has an interest rate of 46% per annum. The facility is secured by sharehoider guarantee.

The facility expires on 30 April 2023.
-Tobacco Processors Zimbabwe ZWL overdraft and short term facility equivalent to LIS$754 798 with

Stanbic Bank Zimbabwe has an interest rate of 55% per annum (2021: 40%). The facility is secured by
shareholder guarantee. The facility expires on 31 July 2023.

-Tobacco Processors Zimbabwe ZWL overdraft and short term facility equivalent to US$269 571 with
CABS Limited has an interest rate of 50% per annum. The facility is secured by sharehelder guarantee.

The Facility expires on 30 Novermber 2022,
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2022
uUs$'o00

85

508

588

237

1413

2021
uss$'o00

54

42

585

891
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25 SORROWINGS {continued)

25.2 Short term loans, conditions and status at 30 June 2022

- Northern Tobacca (Private} Limited had a loan balance of US$51 913 000 {2021: US$43 001 081) with
Standard Chartered Bank Pl¢. This is secured by a corporate guarantee by Great Lakes Tobacco Group
Limited and & notarial general covering bond over all movable assets including a cession of hook debts
and assignment of inceme and insurances.

Interest on this facility is at LIBOR plus 43 per annum, with drawdown fees of 2% per annum. The loan
has a tenure of 180 days and can be rolled over but not to a period beyond 360 days from the original
drawdown date.

The facility expired on 31 October 2022 and was renawed to 31 October 2023.

- Northern Tobacco {Private) Limited had a loan balance of U552 233 178 (2021: US54 807 856)

with Standard Chartered Bank Zimbabwe under the same facility and terms and conditions with Standard
Chartered Bank Plc highlighted above, except for the interest charge. interest on this loan was 45% per
anpum {2021: 45% per annum.)

The facility expired on 31 October 2022 and was renewed to 31 Qctober 2023.

- Northern Tobacco (Private) Limited had a loan balance of U5$30 588 000D (2021: US529 694 533) with
Standard Banrk iste of Man Limited, also secured by a corporate guarantee by Great Lakas Tobacco Group
Limited, a notarial general covering bond, assignment of income and insurances, and cession of offshore
balances held.

The interest rate was LIBOR plus 4% per annum, with arrangement fees of 2% per annum.
The facility expired on 31 October 2022 and was renewed to 31 October 2023,

- Northern Tobacco (Private) Limited had a loan balance of USS4 134 000 (2021: US$25 665 883) with
ABSA Bank Mauritius Limited, guaranieed by Great Lakes Tobacco Group Limited and a cession of own,
and Great Lakes Tobacco Group Limited's income. The interest rate was at LIBOR plus 6% per annum.
The Joan had a tenure of 180 days and can be rolled over to the maturity date but not to a period beyond
545 days from the original drawdown date.

The facility expired on 31 October 2022 and was renewed to 31 October 2023,

- Northern Tobacca {Private) Limited had a ZWL loan balance of US$1 397 910 (2021: USS$4 212 222)
with CABS Limited, guaranteed by Great Lakes Tobacco Group Limited and cession of own and
Great Lakes Tobacco Group Limited's income.

The interest rate was 47% per annum {2021: 43% per annum), with establishment fees of 2% per annum.
The lpan had a tenor of 180 days and can be rolled over to the maturity date.
The facility expires on 30 November 2022,

- Northern Tobacca {Private) Limited had an unsecured loan balance of U5$355 214 {2021: U551 156 904) with
NMB Bank Limited. Interest rate was 55% per annum (2021; 40% per annum).

The facility expires on 30 November 2022.

- Northern Tobacco {Private} Limited had a USD loan balance of S$20 179 000 with CABS Limited,
guaranteed by Great Lakes Tobacco Group Limited and cession of own and Great Lakes Tobacco Group
Limited's income.

The interest rate was 8% per annum, with establishment fees of 2.5% per annum,

The loan had a tenar of 180 days and can be roiled over to the maturity date.
The facility expires on 30 November 2022,
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GROUP
2022 2021
US$'000  US$'000
51913 49001
2233 4 808
30588 29695
4134 25666
1398 4212
355 1157
20179 -
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25 BORROWINGS (continued)

25.2  Short term loans, conditions and status at 30 June 2022 (continued] GROUP
' 2022 2021
Us$'000  US5'000
- The current portion of Rift Valley Energy Limited Tanzania's CRDB Bank Limited loan was US$234 000. - 234

The facility had an interest rate of 13.5% per annum.
It was secured on a mortgage against land, a charge over the entire assets of Rift Valley Energy Limited,
a corparate guarantee fram the Group, as well as Mwenga Hydro Limited's power plants,

- Suma Hydre Limited loan on a USS2 400 000 facility with AgDevCo Tanzania Limited. The facility was - 456
acquired to develop Suma Hydra power plant in Tukuyu {Mbeya region, Tanzania) and has an interest rate
of 8.5% per annum.

- Makandi Estates (Private) Limited had a loan of US$471 400 (2021: US5500 000 } and ZWLSC 683 200 732 1200
(2021: ZWL 80 683 200) with Eccbank Zimbabwe Limited. The loan is secured by offshore cash collateral

of USD500 000 placed with Ecobank Kenya Limited, NGCB for LUSD1 000 000 over movable assets

The loan matures on 31 December 2022.

- Border Timbers Limited had a short-term USD loan facility with Ecobank Zimbabwe Limited equivalent 75 -
10 US$74 991at 30 June 2022 at an interest rate of 8%. The facility expires on 31 December 2022.

- The current portion of Rift Valley Energy Limited Tanzania's TDB & REPP loans being interest accrued. - 385
The loan was under the same facility as the jong term loan in 25.4.

- Short term portion of Border Timbers Limited loan received frem Deutshe Investitions - und 790 -
Entwicklungsgeselischaft mbH ("DEG"} . The loan is secured by Rift Valley Corperation guarantee of
UsD3 800 000 in favour of DEG

Total short term loans 112357 116814

253 Compliance with loan covenants
The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its borrowing facilities during the years ended 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021.

25.4  lLong term borrowings

COMPANY GROuUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
uss'ooo US$'000 Uss'000 uss'000
1297 1345 Leng term loans 5802 6036

Long term borrowings, conditions and status as at 30 June 2022

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
Us5'000 . Uss$'000 UsS$'000  USS'000
958 1035 The loan from Matanuska Mauritius Limited has interest at a fixed rate of 1035 998

5% p.a., is unsecured and repayable in 2028.

299 310 During the year ended 30 June 2020, HCP Africa Limited ceded part of its loan to 310 299
the Group to Guy Lafferty, with no changes to all other terms and conditions.
The koan is unsecured, interest rate at 5% per annum and repayzble on 30 June 2028.

- - The non-curtent portion of the Rift valley Energy Limited (Tanzania) CRDB Bank loan - 121
facility of TZ5 6,9 million {U553 million).
The loan was acquired ta develop a sMW hydro power project at Mwenga River (Iringa,
Tanzania}l and matured on 6 September 2020. Interest is charged at the weighted
average time deposit Rate (WATDR} published by the Bank of Tanzania + 5%
[minimum 12% pa), and average 13.5% pa in 2022 (2021: 13.5%).
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25

25.4

BORROWINGS {continued)

Long term borrowings [continued)

COMPANY
2021 2022
Uss$'000 Us$'000
1297 1345

GROUP
2022 2021
Uss$'000 Uss$'000
Long term loan received from Deutshe Investitions - und Entwicklungsgesellschaft
mbH ("DEG") 2904 -

The loan is secured by Rift Valley Corporation guarantee of USD3 800 000
in favour of DEG.

The loan matures in 2026. Average interest rate as at 30 June 2022
was 3.54% per annurm.

Rift Valley Energy Tanzania has a USS8 000 000 facility with Trade - 2293
Development Bank {TDB). The facility was obtained in September 2020 to
develop two separate 2.55MW wind and hydro projects in Iringa region.

The facility has a tenure of 13 years with 3 years grace period on loan principal
repayments. Effective interest rate is 8.85% per annum.

Rift Valley Energy Tanzania has a USS1 200 00D facility with Renewable - 298
Energy Performance Platform (REPP). The facility was obtained in March 2020 to

develop 2.35MW wind projects in Iringa region. The facility has a tenure of 10

years with 3 years grace period on loan principat repayments. Interest rate was

8% per annum,

Makandi €states Cicada Loan 1553 1427
An gffshore loan extended to Makand! Estates by Cicada Plantations

Investments Limited in Mauritius for a tenure of sixty manths from May 2025.

Interest is charged on the cutstanding amount at @ rate of 12 month LIBOR
+5.5% per annum,

5 802 6036
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26

27

SHAREHOLDER LOANS

COMPANY

2021 2022

Uss'000 uss$'ooo

12 667 13 128

94 958 97 462

107 625 110590
COMPANY

2021 2022

Us$'000 Us$'000

108 475 107 625

2170 2504

480 461

{3 500} -

107 625 110 550

PROVISIONS

COMPANY

2021 2022

Uss'o00 Uss'ooo

200 200

- (200}

200 -

Non-current
Non-current - classified as equity

GROUP
2022 2021
us$'000 uss'aon
13303 12794
97 462 94 958
110 765 107752

There was a restructuring of shareholder loans amounting USS87 420 000
on 1 july 2015, from tota! leans of USS96 746 000. The restructured loans
became interest free and were payable after 1 July 2022.

As a result of the new terms, these loans were reclassified from liabilities
to equity.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, US5243 284 was reclassified from
non-current liabilities in shareholders loans to equity (note 37{b}ii}}.
During the year ended 30 june 2020, an additional amount of U5$113 145
from shareholders was recognised.

At 30 June 2022 shareholders' loans not classified as equity were US513 303 446
{2021: US512 794 000). These loans were from Rift Valley Corporation Limited and
HCP Africa Limited ("HCP"}, all unsecured, interest at 5% per annum and repayable on

30 June 2028.

GROUP
2022 2021
uss'oon uss$'000
Balance at 1 fuly 107 752 108 602
Additional borrowings 2504 2170
Interest accrued 509 480
Principal repayments - {3 500)
Balance at 30 June 110 765 107 752
GROUP
2022 2021
uUs5'000 Uss‘000
Balance at 1 July 5196 6406
Additions 18635 3254
Utilised {2 760) {4 492)
Reversals {73) -
Translation differences - 28
Balance at 30 June 2993 5196

Provision for leave pay

The provisian relates to vesting leave pay to which employees may become entitled
to on leaving employment of the Group. The provision arises as employees render
their services that ingrease their entitlerent to future compensated absences and s
calculated at current remuneration rates, The provision is utilised when employees

take leave or are paid accumulated leave pay.

Provision for bonus
The provision caonsists of an annual banus based on set performance criterla.
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28

29

30

REVENUE

COMPANY

2021 2022

Us$'000 us$'000

OTHER INCOME

COMPANY

2021 2022

Us$'000 US$'000

587 587

81 360

668 947

OTHER GAINS/{LOSSES) - NET

COMPANY
2021 2022
uss'o00 Uss'ono
307 -
. {508
307 {508)

GROUP
Revenue from sale of goods 2022 2021
Uss'000 Us$'000
Tobacco 134519 134 045
Timber 4671 -
Macadamia and Avocado 5659 4 428
Grains - 3094
144 349 141 567
Revenue from rendering of servicas
Tobaceo processing and other services 17 204 23833
Revenue comprises net sales and services rendered to customers,
sale of electricity, and various fees charged ta contract growers.
Total 162 053 165 400
GRQUP
2022 2021
uss'o00 uss'oot
Mark up on sale of commodities 1465 1942
Grants (note 22) - 396
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 201 16
Rental income 23 157
Management fees 927 523
Cther items 1198 999
Write back on BTL Loans 1003 -
Dividends - 85
Other income fram continuing operations 43817 41128
GROUP
2022 2021
Us$'000 Uss$'o00
Unrealised exchange gains 4739 2 887
Realised exchange gains - 1761
Unrealised exchange losses - -
Realised exchange losses (967} (232)
Change in fair value of biological assets due to biological transformation 7.1 259 {10}
Change in fair value of agricuitural produce {inventories) (455} 11173)
Impairment loss on revaluation of property, plant and eguipment 8 {314} (843)
Fair value gain arising on financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss 11 (18} {29}
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment property 12 135 {22)
Fair value gain on regain of control of Border Timbers Limited 33.2 45079 -
Other (8) 55
48 450 2394
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31

32

INCOME TAX CREDIT/{EXPENSE)

COMPANY
2021 2022
US$"000 Us5'000

COMPANY
2021 2022
Us$'a00 US$'000

EXPENSES BY NATURE

COMPANY
2021 2022
uss'ooo Uss'oog
7 7
492 338
22 -
7 5
- 21
64 178
56 454
648 1003

Current incame tax credit/(expense)
Deferred tax credit / {charge} {note 23}

A reconciliation between tax credit/(expense) and the accounting profit/{loss)

Accounting profit/{loss) before income tax
At tax rates applicable in country of incerporation
Nan-deductible expenses for tax purposes

Tax effect of exempt income
Exchange rate differences and other items

Current tax assets
Balance at 30 lune

Current tax assets relate to amounts receivahle from the Zimbabwean tax authorities,

Exchange rate differences and other arise from non deductible expenses.

Agricultural inputs, materials, consumables and related services
Employee benefit expense {note 32.1)
Depreciation (note 8)

Amortisation (note 9)

Depreciation right of use assets {note 8.1}
Lass on disposal of subsidiary {note 33.1)
Allowance for credit Josses on contract grower receivables {note 32.2)
Impairment of receivabies [note 32.3)
Legal and consultancy

Provisions {leave & bonuses)

selling and distribution expenses

Repairs and maintenance

Licences, levies and insurance

Transport costs

Rent and utllities

Bank charges

Travel

Auditors remuneration

Fines and penalties

Qperating lease payments

Inventory write downs

Other

Total cost of sales, distribution costs and administrative expenses
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GROUP
2022 2021
uss'o0o US5'000
{1613) {4 404)
3808 {1656)
2195 {6 060)
GROLP
2022 2021
us$'ooo us$'0c0
48 636 (691)
(1 885) {25)
829 -
- 1656
3151 {7 681}
2195 (6 060}
(841) (67)
GROUP
2022 2021
uss'000 Us$'000
126 727 116 577
19631 12686
2909 3575
128 165
2176 1603
2470 203
1589 5914
(113) (72)
581 663
1383 -
1045 1066
485 2081
1060 520
1196 4623
1356 165
1437 601
93 1074
471 316
- 172
- 6
19 -
2008 14 570
166 655 166518
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32 EXPENSES BY NATURE {continued)

COMPANY

2021 2022
Uss$'000 Us3'000
648 1003

648 1003

32.1 Employee benefit expense

COMPANY
2021 2022
uss'000 Uss'e0n
7 7
7 7
2021 2022
tNumber Number

32.2  Allowance for credit losses on contract grower receivables

COMPANY

2021
USS'000

2022
Us5'ooo

GROUP
2022 2021
Allocation of expenses Us$'o00 uss'ooo
Administration expenses 34 952 32615
Selling and distribution expenses 1049 1066
Cost of sales 130 654 132 838
166 655 166 519
GROUP
2022 2021
Uss'000 uss'000
Safaries and wages 17 803 11391
Termination benefits 9 -
Pension costs 1109 189
Medical aid contributions 205 405
Other staff welfare costs 505 701
19631 12 686
2022 2021
Number Number
Group manning levels
Paermanent 828 529
Contract 3130 3116
3958 3645
GROUP
2022 2021
Uss'000 LJs$'000
Impairments arising from a weakened ZWL/USD exchange rate as at year end that may
lead to reduced USD recoverable on ZWL denominated grower advances (300) 5567
(note 15)
Increase impairment allowances (note 15} 1733 {353)
Also included within administration expenses are losses that arose from a weakened
ZWL/USD exchange rate as at date of payment which resuited in a reduced USD
being recovered on the ZWL denominated grower advances being settled 15& (300}
{note 15)
1589 5914

79



RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO-THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

32 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued)
323 Impairment

COMPANY
2021 2022
Us$'000 Us5'000
- - Trade receivables (note 16}

- - Total

33 DISPOSAL AND ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

33.1 Disposal of subsidiaries

GROUP
2022 2021
uss'000 Us$'000
{113) (72}
{113) {72}

The Group disposed of its interest in Northern Farming (Private) Limited on the 1 July 2021, and Mirror image investments on

1 July 2020. The net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Right of use asset

Intangible assets

Biological assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Bank baiances and cash

Total Assets

Borrowings

Lease liability

Trade and other payables
Deferred tax liability

Amounts due to group companies
Total Liabilities

Net assets disposed of

Loss on disposal {note 32}

Total consideration

Met cashflow arising on disposal:
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents

Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of

Total consideration received
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2022 2021
USS$'000 UsSs'000
1279 S 478
- 688

246 -
618 -

79 263
2070 -
53 176
4345 6 605
(54) {707)

- {659)

{904) {105)
{(207) -
(66} (4 616)
{1231} {6 087}
3114 518
(2 470} {203)
644 315
644 315
(53) (176}
591 139




RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED

" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

33 DISPOSAL AND ACQUISITION OF SUBSIBIARIES (continued)
33.2  Acquisition of subsidiary

On 1 March 2022, the Group regained 88% control of Border Timbers Limited {BTL), which had been placed under judicial management
on 29 January 2015.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out below. Property, plant and
equipment and Biological assets were fair valued by Hellands an independent valuer with over 111 years of experience. The investment
was fully impaired when Border Timbers Limited went into Judicial management in 2015.

2022

Uss'000

Property, plant and equipment 27778

Biologicat assets 43 495

Inventories 1456

Trade anc other receivables 2692

Bank balances and cash 35

Total Assets 75497

Borrowings (4 945)

Deferred tax liability (14 516)

Trade and other payzhles (4 775)

Total Liabtlities {24 236 )

identifiabla Net Assets Acquired 51261

Non-Contrefling Interest (6182)

Total consideration -

Gains recognised on regain of controt {note 30) 454079

34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION
34,1  Current income tax liability

COMPANY GROUP

2021 2022 2022 2021

uUss'000 Uss'000 Uss$'000 us5'000

- - Balance at 1 July 1501 -

- - income tax charge (note 31} 1613 4404

- - income taxes paid (2 990) {2 836)

- - Other - (67

- - Balance payable at 30 June 124 1501
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38 CASH FLOW INFORMATION {continued)

354.2  Lease liabilities

COMPANY
2021 2022

uUss'000 us5'000
- - Balance at 1 July

Modification

interest expense on lease

Repayments during the year

Additions

Disposal of subsidiary

Translation resulting from exchange difference

Balance payable at 30 June
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GROUP

2022 2021
us$'000 US5'co0
2382 1588
1679 1444
599 315
{2687 (772}
2026 1126
(s3] (1318

- (1}
4911 2382
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RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE - FINANGIAL STATEMENTS o noe e s

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES {continued)

3} Key management personnel remuneration and other compensation

Key management includes directors, Group management and finance directors of
operating subsidiaries. The compensation paid or payable to key management for
services is shown below:

COMPANY
2021 2022
Us5'000 U000

b) Balances {owed to} / by related parties

i} Receivabies from related parties

Salaries and short-term benrefits

Border Timbers Limited - unconsolidoted subsidiary

Chipinge Banana Group (Private) Limited - joint venture

Tobs Strong (Private) Limited - common directorship

COMPANY
2021 2022
UsS'000 uss'000
1) Trade and other receivables
Othar relationships
1913 2430 Cicada Holdings Limited
- - Other related parties
1913 2430
COMPANY
2021 2022
uss'o00 Uss$'000
Contract grower receivables
1913 2430

Total receivables from related parties

ii) Loans and payables to related parties

COMPANY

2021 2022
Us$'000 uss'0a0
{3 852) (4 128}
(94 958) (97 462}
(98 810) (101 520}
{8 813) (9 Qoo}
{107 623) {110 590}

Payables
Northern Farming
{Private) Limited

Rift Valley Corporation Limited {note 26}
Non-current liabilities
Shareholder loans

HEP Africa Limited {nate 26)
Non-current liabilities

85

GROUP

2022 2021

Uss'000 Us5'000

1817 4241
GROUP

2022 2021

Uss'000 UsS$'000

- 193

287 14

2454 3545

2 889 207

5630 3959
GROUP

2022 2021

uss'000 Uss'ooo

416 538

6046 2497
GROUP

2022 2021

Us$’000 LSS 000

{38) -

(38} -

{17 431) (3 981)

{97 462) {94 958)

{114 893} (98 939)

{2 00D) (8 813)

(123 893) {107 752)




RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO.THE. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS..
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

35

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)

c} Transactions with related parties
The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

i) Purchases of goods and services

COMPANY

2021 2022
US5'000 US$'000
(1) -
(s1) -

i) Sale of goods

COMPANY
2021 2022
us$'o0o uss'ono

Common directorship
Tobs Strong {Private} Limited
Hoegh Capital Partners Services Limited

Other

iii} Interest on ioans and other amounts from related parties

COMPANY
2021 2022
Us$'000 Ls$'000
{147} (147)
{328} (328)
{475) 475}
330 529
- 26
5 110
335 665

Common directorship

Interest expense on loans
Rift valley Corporation Limited
HCP Africa Limited

Interest income on foans

Rift Valiey Energy Limited

Cicada Katiyc {Private) Limited
Makandi Estates (Private] Limited

86

GROUP

2022 2021

U5$'000 Uss$'000

1458 958

- (51)

1458 907
GROUP

2022 2021

US5'000 Us$'000

134 519 153 162
GROUP

2022 2021

uss'ooe Uss%'060

(147) (147)

(328) (328}

(475} (475}




RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES.TO THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS . . e e o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

AMOUNTS DUE FROM / TO GROUP COMPANIES

Rift Valley Services Zimbabwe (Private) Limited
Rift valley Energy Limited

Makandi Estates (Private) Limited
Streamcourse Limited

Rift Valley Energy Limited
Mwenga Hydro Limited

Total

36
36.1 Amounts due from group companies
(a) Loans
COMPANY
2021 2022
uss'ooo uss'000
5920 5946
8273 9008
14193 14 954
(b} Other balances
COMPANY
2021 2022
uss'c00 uss'ooo
11177 11037
831 730
12008 11767
(¢) Other amounts
COMPANY
2021 2022
uss$'ooo UsS$'000
384 484
38 38
422 522
26 623 27 243
36.2

Amounts due to group companies

{a). Borrowings

COMPANY
2021 2022
us5'000 uss'eno
500 600

Franconian Zimbabwe Investrmenis (Private) Limited

37

GRDUP
2022 2021
Uss'000 us5'000

GROUP
2022 2021
uss$'000 Us5'000

GROUP
2022 2021
Uss'ooo Uss'o00

GROUP
2022 2021
Uss'000 us$'o00




RIFT VALLEY HOLDINGS LIMITEDR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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37

38

FINANCE {COSTS) f INCOME

COMPANY GROUP
2021 2022 2022 2021
USs'000 uss'ono Uss'ooo uss'o0o
- - Bank borrowings {12 103) {8 853)
- - Other parties {226) (1 443)
- - Lease liabilities {599) (315)
{511) {51%) Intergroup loans {511) (511}
(511} (511) Finance costs {13 439) (11 122)
- - Contract grower scheme receivables 4 588 4161
- - Other trade debtors 928 810
- - Bank 12 41
326 666 Intergroup foans - -
326 666 Finance income 5538 5012

DiSCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 1st July 2021 the board resolved to dispose of the Group’s Energy operations and negotiations with several interested parties have
subsequently taken place. The disposal is consistent with the Group’s long-tarm policy to focus its activities on the Group’s other
businesses, These cperations, which are expected to be sold within 12 months, have been classified as a disposal group held for sale and
presented separately in the stataments of financial position. The proceeds of disposal are expected to substantially exceed the carrying
amount of the related net assets and accordingly no impairment losses have besn recognised on the classification of these aperations
as held for sale.

The results of the discontinued operations, which have been incfuded in the profit for the year, were as follows:

2022

uss'eon

Revenue 2386

Expenses {1577)

Profit before tax 409

Attributable tax expense {310)
Net profit attributable to discontinued aperations

(attributable to Owners of the Company) 99

During the year, Rift Valley Energy Tanzania Limited, Suma Hydro Limited, Ndalela Hydro, Limited Rural Power Development Plant,
Ruponde Hydro timited and Mwenga Hydro Limited contributed US$681 000 {2021: {55123 000} to the Group’s net operating cash
flows, paid USS360 000 (2021: US$327 000) in respect of investing activities and paid US$301 000 {2021: received US$721 000} in respect
of financing activities.

g8
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38 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS {continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the operations classified as held for sale are as follows:

2022

uss'ooo

Property, piant and equipment {note 8} 18945
Right of use asset {note 8.1} 210
Intangible assets {note 9} 44
Deferred tax asset 1
inventories 401
Trade and other receivables 1210
Current tax asset 53
Cash and bank balances 104
Total assets classified as held for sale 20 968
Borrowings (4 102)
Deferred revenue (152)
Leasa liahility (88)
Grants (note 22) (8 406)
Deferred tax liabilities (2017)
Trade and other payables [10652)
Total liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale (15 816)
Net assets of disposal group 5152

39 GOING CONCERN

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes the Group will continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The Group has recognised a profit after tax from continuing operations of U$550 831 D0Q (2021: loss of (USS6 751 000), and cash flow
used in operating activities for the year ended 3¢ June 2022 was US53 213 000 (2021: U5564 752 000).

This has all resulted in a positive equity position of US$129 080 00G for the Group at 30 June 2022 (2021: S569 184 000).

Moreover, on 1 July 2015 the Group’s shareholders agreed to restructure (increased tenor and interest wajver) loans of USS87 420 000
due to them (and classified as eguity by the Group), and the batance of these loans was US$97 462 000 at 30 June 2022 {note 26).

The shareheclders have aiso committed to continue providing support to the Group, should the Group so require.

As a result of all of the above, the directors do not believe that any uncertainties exist over the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern.

B2
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40

LAND DESIGNATION
(i) Border Timbers Limited

Border Timbers Limited’s land was expropriated by the Government of Zimbabwe ["the Government"} in 2005 and subjected to invasions
befare and after 2005. In addition, certain measures were taken by the Government against Border's foreign exchange. In 2010, the
Group and its subsidiary companies, Hangani and Timber Products International [Private) Limited {"Timber Products”) {collectively, “the
Border Claimants”) filed a Request for Arbitration with the International Centre for Settlement of tnvestment Disputes ("ICSID") against
the Government under the investment treaty between Switzerland and Zimbabwe (the “Treaty”), ICSID Case No. ARB/10/25 {"the Border
Arbitration”). Timber Products assigned its intarest in the Border Arbitration to the Group on 16 December 2014.

Claims were also brought against the Government in separate arbitral proceedings by the Group's {then) majority shareholder, the van
Pezold Family (“the VP Claimants”) under the same bilateral investment treaty as well as under 2 bilateral treaty between Germany and
Zimbabwe, ICSID Case No. ARB/10/15 ("the VP Arbitration”). The VP Arbitration extended to other expropriated land owned by the von
Pezold Family through companies in which the Group held no legal or other interasts. The VP Arbitration fogether with the Border
Arbitration shall be referred to as, “the ICSID Arbitrations",

In July 2015, two separate but identically constituted Arbitral Tribunals issued two separate awards in the |CSID Arbitrations in favour of
the Barder Claimants {"the Border Award"} and in favour of the VP Claimants ("the VP Award"), with identical relief (with certain
exceptions relating to moral damages, interest and costs} for: (i) the expropriation of the properties that were owned (directly or
indirectly) by the Group; {ii}) the manner In which the Government responded to the invasion of those properties; and (iii) the measures
that the Government took in regard to Border’s foreign exchange. “The Barder Award" and "the VP Award” together shall be referred to
as "the Final Awards". That relief was compensation in the sum of US$124,041,223 {“the Border Compensation”) (failing restitution of
the expropriated land and other damages) and pre and post award interest relating to that compansation. The Arbitral Tribunal did not
determine the manner of apportionment of the Final Awards in regard to tha Border Compensation but included a provision in each of
the 8arder Award and the VP Award that prohibits double recovery.

In October 2015, the Government instituted annulment proceedings seeking to set aside the Final Awards, The ICSID arbitration
proceedings concluded in November 2018 after the ICSID ad hoc Committee dismissed the Government’s annuiment agplications in their
entirety ("the Annulment Decisions”). To date, the Government has not paid any part of the Final Awards and the amounts awarded
reman unsatisfied and outstanding in their entirety.

As the Final Awards expressly prohibited double recovery between the Border Claimants and the VP Claimants as to the Border
Compensation, this has resulted in the Border Claimants and the VP Claimants needing to agree on the split and apportionment of the
Border Compensation.

For the duration of the 1CSID Arbitration, Govarnment of Zimbabwe has respected the principle that to the extent that the Group
continved to occupy and operate its forestry business on the land.

Subject to full payment of the Border Award, the Group has the right to continue operating its business on, and occupying, the land. The
full terms of the Border Award are in the public domain and readily available for anyone to access.

The view therefore is that the Group will continue to occupy the unaffected parts and run and operate its business in the ordinary course
unitil the Arbitration Award has beern settled in full,

{ii) Makandi Estates {Private)} Limited

Two of the Group's estates, namely Smaldeel and Christina have been unger threat of compulsory acquisition under the land reform
programme. Smaldeel has since 2004 encountered some moves made to occupy it while Christina was recently also subjected to the
same threat.

The Christina matter was presented to the courts who granted a default judgement in the Group’s favour in April 2022. In May 2022, the
judgement was appealed and overthrown in the High Court. The Group has launched an appeal with the Supreme Court in Harare. This
appeal is pending and is likely to be heard latest by April 2023. The effect of the noting of the appeal is that it suspends the High Court
order unitil such tirme when the Supreme Court has heard and determined the appeal. As such, the status quo remains and the Group is
in poassession of the land.
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40

41

LAMND DESIGNATION (continued)
(i) Makandi Estates {Private) Limited {continued])

The Group is covered by Bilateral investments Protection and Promotion Agreement (“BIPPA”) which the Government of Zimbabwe
signed on 29 September 1995 with the Federal Republic of Germany whereby the two countries agreed to promaote and protect
investments by nationals of the other party in its territory fairly and equitably. Per the requirements of the BIPPA agreement, all
disagreements between aggrieved parties must be cenvened by the International Center For Settlement of Investment Disputes (1CSID),
based in Washington DC, 1ISA The ICSIN has handed down two judgements relating to the disputes in 2015 and in 2013.

Cansidering the period over which the dispute has been going on for with no outcomes seen in favour of the Government of Zimbabwe,
management views that the chances of occupation of the land to be remote. Though remote, if the Government of Zimbabwe pays the
refquigite sum to occupy Smaldeel and Christina, Makandi Estates {Private) Limited will still be able to resume operations in consideration
of the following:

i- The areas under threat of occupation are areas that Makandi rents out and no revenue driving farming activity is carcied out in
thte specific land.

ii- No official moves to occupy Chipinge Holdings have been noted to date. Chipinge Holdings trings about 42% of the Group’s
revenues from avocados and macadamia.

IMPACT OF THE RUSSIAN INVASION OF UKRAINE

On 24 February 2022, Russia invade Ukraine. The invasion was widely condemned internationally and resulted in economic sanctions
against Russia, Belarus and certain regions of Ukraine. The Group does not have employees or offices in Ukraine or Russia and our funds
have very limited exposure to assets and clients based in those countries. The Group has documented and tested processes in place for
situations of this nature and has been working to ensure that any potential disruption to its business Is minimised and to ensure that all
applicable sanctions imposed are implemented in a timely manner. The Group has also taken measures to reinforce its information
security processes and systems to continue to protect its clients’ assets. The invasion could also have significant impact on the global
economy as the effect of sanctions could result in further inflationary pressures and have a broader impact on financial markets. Any
such impacts are highly uncertain and rapidly changing and it is not possible to predict the extent to which this could adversely impact
our financial results and business operations. The Group’s management are menitoring the situation and the associated risks with the
intention of mitigating the risks, where possible.
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